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as America Ages

Available Now

The Appendix to
the EmptoYee Assistance Programs
Part II: Professional Guidelines
Premiered at the EAPA 22nd Annual Conference in November, the Appendix is selling
briskly. Examples of policies, forms and much more —all in compliance with the
Standards —serve as a guide to be modified to the needs of your work organization.
Arranged in a loose-leaf format, the Appendix provides valuable samples on core
functions of EAP activity, such as:
EAP Data. Elements

Policy Statements
Fitness,for Duty Policy
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Employee Assistance Program Policies
Drug and Alcohol Policy
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Entertainment Guidelines
Supervisor Referral Policy

_____--,
~lI
~~~ r +i

Intake Forms

•;~`

_____use of Information/Consent to Disclose Forms

Supervisory Referral Form
Sample Position Descriptions
Includes Internal and External
EAP Director/Mctnctger/Coordinator,
Internal ctnd External
EAP Consultant/Counselor/Representative,
EAP Secretary/Receptionist/Support Staff
and Internal EAP Coordinator

$30 each Nonmembers

$20 each Members
Check, Money Order

Visa, MasterCard, American Express
Write, Call or Fax
EAI'A, Inc.
4601 N. Fairfax Drive
Suite 1001
Arlington, VA 22203

Telephone: (703) 522-6272
Facsimile:
(703) 522-6272

[After January 24]
2101Wilson Boulevard
Suite 500
Arlington, VA 22201
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FROM THE C.O.O.

A Financial Statement Report
to the Membership
by Michael L. Benjamin
Chief Operating Officer

Handbook).

hen we reported the results
offiscal 1991-92 a year ago,
we said that, despite an
operating loss of $455,073 and the
resultant impact on our net worth (in
which we went from an accumulated
surplus of $323,835 to a deficit of
$131,238), we were optimistic about
the Association and our financial
viability. We felt the Association's
vital signs (e.g., membership dues,
annual meeting revenues, CEAP
activities) were strong. The source of
the operating loss was not a weakness
in revenues but, rather, a significant
but not necessarily recurring increase
in expenses. We had put into place
several measures to control those
expenditures and we presented a
balanced budget for 1992-93.
The goals of the budget adopted by
the Board of Directors in Atlanta were
to maintain a sound level of
programmaticactivities,increasenonduesrevenues and balancethe budget.
Notwithstanding our financial
position, the year has reflected an
extremely high level of activity and
productivity. We have maintained the
ongoing program of services and
initiated several new ones. We have
initiated a new series of professional
development programs,increased our
professional profile by working with a
number of agencies —the National
Association ofArea Agencies on Agi ng
(NAAAA), the Corporation Against
Drug Abuse (CADA), the Center for
Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP)
and the Center for Mental Health
Services(CMHS) — on new ventures
and continued efforts to bring out new
professional publications and tools
(e.g., Self Assessment, Glossary and
•Appendix to Standards 2, Ethics
Wedid,however,incuranoperating
loss of $94,573. As the Financial
Summary on Pages 21-24 shows,
expenses were roughly $254,849
1
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under budget and down by $420,000
from a year ago. This operating loss
was largelyattributabletotheweakness
in stimulating new sources of revenue
(revenuesweredown by $62,495 from
1992 but $352,000 lower than
budgeted). Despite this, we continue
to remain optimistic as to the
Association's prospects.
Regarding revenues, roughly 71
percent(or $1,841,498 of$2,558,174)
of our operating budget was to come
from the following sources: member
dues(32 percent); the annual meeting
(30 percent)and certification fees(nine
percent)this past year. Actually,these
activities generated $1,912,186 or 86.6
percent ofthe revenues we earned this
past year. These revenue streams
continue to be strong.
The weak spots in budgeted
revenuesfrom ongoing activities were:
• contributions of $40,332 were
$36,674 lower than budgeted and
$49,370 less than 1992;
• publication sales of$52,175 were
$60,925 lower than budgeted and
$43,378 lower than 1992;
• advertising revenues of $47,763
were $35,521 lowerthan budgeted
and $27,705 less than 1992.
A significant portion of the budget
was based on several new products
and programs that were in the
development stages and that are
coming to fruition during our current
fiscal year:
• Appendix and Glossary to
Standards 2;

•ethics monograph; and
• education &training programs.
It is clearthatwith a budget shortfal
of $94,473, almost any combination
ofsuccesses in these areas would have
resulted in a balanced budget. Also, a
balanced -budget required more time
than we had initially projected (to
bring new products and services to
fruition).
On the expenditure side,
expenditures were, well under budget
as a whole. This is a good news/bad
news situation. To the extent that

these expenditures reftectinvestments
in revenue-driven opportunities, then
such projected revenue levels were
not achieved. These are unlike other
reductions (e.g., cutbacks in travel or
unfilled positions) which represented
a decrease in core operating costs.
My objective for 1993-94 —
through deferral of non-critical
programs, prudent staffing (hiring
freeze on replacement of three staff
positions), lower travel and office
expenditures, and close work with the
Association's Finance Committee —
is to have a balanced budget for this
fiscal year and to maintain quality
services to you —our customers.
As I look to the future of EAPs and
the Association, two statements
recently surfaced which are of special
significance for EAPs. The U.S. News
& World Report in its November 1,
1993, issue cites the Employee
Assistance Professional as one of the
"Hot Tracks in 20 Professions." They
further cite as part ofthe training ofthe
EAP that "passing the Certified
Employee Assistance Professional
examination is recommended...."
Clearly, the CEAP is the credential of
the future and we must do what is
necessary to sustain and fortify the
efficacy of the CEAP.
The other statement is from Sandra
Turner, President of EAPA, who stated
in her article on health care reform in
the November/December 1993
Exchange: "the impact of health care
reform upon American workplaces
could be the most profound since the
creation ofthe assembly line and mass
produc[ion... Any such shift in the
workplace ripples through the
organization and certainly has an
impact on the EAP." She concluded
her article with the following: "The
best way to predict-our(EAP]future is
to create it."
We have new growth in EAPA
chapters. The current number stands
at 94 with seven new chapters coming
on line in 1993. And as of September,
1993 we had a total of 3,987 CEAPs.

The EAP's EAP
providing personalized
assessment and referral services
in Minnesota throughout
the metropolitan area.

Note: Forthefirsttime,membership
in the Association reached 7,056 at
the end of September. A year ago, we
had 6,865 members, an increase of
158 members. Between January 1 and
October 31 of 1993, 1,245 new
members joined EAPA. However, a
total of 1,055 did not renew their
membership during a similar period.
The retention of current members is
essential to our Association's health
and we welcome your suggestions in
this regard.
So, we have cause for optimism as
we begin 1994. Our mission is set,our
spirit is resolute. May 1994 bring you
exciting new opportunities as EAPs
and contentment in your own lives, as
you set about creating the future. ~y~

~MetLife°

dor and associates, inc.
The Quality EAP You Can Trust
contact: Karen Hagen
430 First Avenue North, Suite 216
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401

1-800-367-3271

PERSONALIZED CARDS
WITH THE STAYING POWER
TO LASTFOR YEARS!

EAP
SPECIALIST
MetLife is a world leader in financial
services. As we continue to expand our
I;AP service, we offer an excellent full
time opportunity for a licensed or certified mental health professional with
L'AP experience.
This is a clinical position wide primary
responsibility for delivery of one-to-one
services to employees who consult about
personal problems. You will be directly
involved in assessment, referrals, and
problem resolution.
Applic~~ts must have experie~ice in rccognizing and diagnosing alcoholism, substance
abuse :u~d psychiatric problems, as well as
normal developmental crises. Experience
with short Lean intervention is necessary,
uid EAP experience is preferred.
We provide a salary coimnensurite wide
experience and credentials as well as comprehensive benefits. Please send resimie,
which mist include salary history and
rec~ure~nents m: MetLifc, Recn~iting &
Sta~ii~g, Area 1M-VW, Dept SP, One
Madison Ave, NY,NY 10010.Only autdidates selected for fiird~er consideration
will be contacted.
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Stress Cards in a variety of styles, including
"The EAP Card" and "The Economy Stress
Card". We also offer colorful magnetic and
plastic business cards at the lowest prices.
Free Catalog with samples.

Equal Opportunity Employer
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4~ Central Intelligence Agency
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Motivision—The Dryden Files
Motivision—Episodes in EAP!
Satilla Park Hospital
X Pression Products

u st~~nce use
. ounse ors
The Central Intelligence Agency's Office of Medical Services has opportunities available for highly skilled substance abuse counselors to provide
specialized support to employees and family members experiencing problems with chemical dependency.
Applicants must possess at least a Master's degree in a mental health
discipline (Psychology, Social Work, Psychiatric Nursing), specialized training in addictions counseling, and licensure/certification as a mental health
professional. Services will include:
• Providing assessments and recommending appropriate treatment for
clients
• Monitoring progress of and providing continuing support to clients in
clinical treatment
• Developing a referral network of community and nationwide resources for
ongoing treatment
•Providing consulting services to managers
Contract positions are available in the Washington, D.C. metropolitan area.
However, travel may be required. Salary is negotiable depending upon
experience and education. Applicants must successfully complete a thorough
medical and psychiatric exam, a polygraph interview, and an extensive
background investigation. U.S. citizenship is required. Qualified candidates
are invited to submit a resume or letter of interest to:
Personnel Representative
P.O. Box 1925 (IA02)
Washington, D.C. 20013
We will respond within 30 days to those of further interest.

Robert Haas, Chairman and CEO of/,evi
Strauss ~ co.
"It's hard to sleep well when you think about
the fact that one out of every 250 Americans
is infected with HIV. We have more than
34,000 employees worldwide, and I know that

AIDS doesn't discriminate. I'm concerned for
my employees.

"Because of my position, I hope I can lead by
example. At my company,we've had an AIDS
education program in place since 1986. We're
trying to replace ignorance and fear with
understanding and compassion. We've tried to
dispel the myths that surround this dreadful j
disease.
"Now,at least our employees know the facts.
They know that work doesn't stop ifsomeone's
infected. They know that people with HIV
continue to make valuable contributions in
the workplace. They know how to show their
support. Most importantly, they have a better
idea of how to help prevent HIV.
"These are the kinds of things that help me
sleep better at night. But none of us can really
rest until the AIDS epidemic is stopped. Our
efforts to prevent the spread of HIV have just
begun. It will take every company's
commitment. Success depends on each of us."

C°~

•

Call the CDC Business Responds to AIDS Program
at 1.800.458.5231 for comprehensive HIV and
AIDS business information and assistance.
The CIA is an equal opportunity employer.
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PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

Virtual Reality i n Disneyland
by Sandra Turner, CEAP
EAPA President
etween the covers of this month's
Exchange are highlights from the
22nd Annual EAPA Conference
held in Disneyland in November. A
record 2,139 attendees participated in
this event. Rave reviews were received
about the quality of the programming.
But complaints were received about
hotel arrangements. Unfortunately, we
were notabletoaccommodateeveryone
intheconferencehotel. Alternate hotels
were inconvenient and shuttles between
hotels were irregular. Your complaints
are justified. We at EAPA deeply regret
your negative experience of this aspect
of the conference.
Personally, I look forward to reading
this Exchange myself. For the first time
since 1979 I was unable to attend the
EAPA Annual Conference. No one
could be more upset or frustrated about
missing this "happening" in Anaheim.
The EAPA Annual Conference is not
only an educational event, it is a source
of personal rejuvenation for so many of
us "social animals." Reading this
Exchange can only approximate the
benefits of actually being there.
wish to dedicate the remaining
column of this Presidents Message to
the outgoing members of our Board of
Directors. Serving on the Board is an
honor and responsibility accorded to
only a few of the 7,000 members of
EAPA. In turn, these individuals and
their employers dedicate many hou rs of
unpaid, voluntary service on behalf of
the entire profession of employee
assistance programming. Elected
representatives on the Board serve for
two years. Appointed Committee
chairpersons serve for three years. In
Committee
November, nine
chairpersons completed their terms of
office. Wegratefullyacknowledgethese
men and women.
Miriam Aaron,CEAP,Chairperson of
the Legislative and Public Policy
Committee, is Statewide Coordinator

for the Office of Alcoholism and
Substance Abuse Services in New York,
New York. As information was being
collected forth is ed ition ofthe Exchange,
Miriam was in Tel Aviv, Israel, serving
as the keynote speaker for a forum of
Israel's alcoholism treatment programs,
and conducting an eight-hour institute
of training for key staff and
representatives from industry, helping
the nation develop and implement
workplace alcohol intervention
programs.
Terry C. Blum,-Chairperson of the
Research Committee, is Associate
Professor of Organizational Behavior,
Georgia Institute of Technology in
Atlanta, Georgia. She has published
articles in a number of scholarly
publications, including Contemporary
Drug Problems, American Sociological
Review, Journal of Drug Issues and
Sociological Perspectives. Terry serves
on the Editorial Board of Social Forces

and the Editorial Advisory Board of
Employee Assistance; she is Associate
Editor of American Journal of Health
Promotion and Editor of the newsletter
of the American Sociological
Association.
Bradley Googins,Chairperson ofthe
Special Projects Committee,is Professor
and Director of the Boston University
Center on Work and Family in Boston,
Massachusetts. He has been a member
of EAPA since 1977; in addition to the
Special ProjectsCommittee,Bradleyhas
served as chair of the Research
Committee. Most recently, he provided
leadership in crafting and conducting a
strategic planning process by which the
Board adopted its current long-range
plan.
John T. Gorman,CEAP,Chairperson
of the Program Managers Committee,
has been with Consolidated Rail
Corporation since September 1977 and
serves as Manager of the Employee
Counseling Service. He is a "charter"
CEAP, gaining his certification when

the program began in 1987. One ofthe
chartermembersofthe belawareValley
EAPA Chapter, John has served as
chapter president and has held other
officeswithinthechapter. Typicallythe
first member of the Board across the
finish line inthe Fun Run,)ohn concedes
he is possibly the only member of the
Board in the Fun Run.
John ). Hennessy,CEAP,Chairperson
oftheTreatmentCommittee,isAssociate
Director of Marketing for Mediplex in
Harrington Park, New Jersey. Jack,
inducted into the EAP Digests Hall of
Fame in 1989,was the first Chairman of
the EACC Commission (1986) and a
charter member of the New York City
EAPA Chapter (1973). He established
the International Longshoremen's
Association Alcoholism Program in
1973, which was the first labor grantee
byNIAAAin1974. Hisworkwithlabor,
including establishing Labor
Management Programs in Industry, led
to his award of the NCA-AFL-CIO
Meany Roche Award in 1982.
Joan D. McCrea,CEAP,Chairperson
of the Women's Issues Committee, has
been with Hughes Aircraft Company in
Los Angeles, California since 1979 and
serves as Corporate Manager of the
Employee Assistance Program. She is a
charter CEAP, gaining her certification
in 1987, and served on the Executive
Comm ittee of National EAPA(ALMACA)
in 1980, 1981 and 1982 as Secretary.
She served as Secretary and Vice
President of the Los Angeles EAPA
chapter and was a charter member of
that chapter.
William R. Schleicher, CEAP,
Chairperson of the Membership
Committee, is the District Manager for
the Employee Assistance Program for
AT&T's Central Region with regional
headquarters in Chicago, Illinois. He
supervises program staff offering
psychiatric chemical dependency and
President's Message continued on

pg. 36
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EDITOR'S
COMMENT

Exchange Advisory Committee Sets'94

Editorial Agenda

The

Exchange Advisory
Committee met twice to
discuss editorial issues and
generate the editorial calendar for
1994. Committee Chairperson Irene
C. Simonetti and I welcome the
Committee's newest member, Skip
Bradford, UAW EAP Representative,
Bell Helicopter, Textron, Euless,
Texas.
Aware that the editorial content of
some articles may not reflect the views
of the entire membership — or may
unknowinglycontain inaccuracies—
the Committee encourages EAPA
members to respond in writing to the
Editor, by mail or facsimile(numbers
appear below). Further, on a monthto-month basis,the Committee wants
the membership to be aware that any
editorial censorship or lack of
censorshipexercised bythe Exchange
is not based on the approval of the
EAPA Board of Directors.

The Committee is an invaluable
resource to me and I thank each
member for his or her comments and
suggestions. I look forward to an
exciting editorial year and to hearing
from you about articles you may wish
to contribute which may relate to the
topics below.

The 23rd Annual Conference;also,
"Disabilities and Substance Abuse";
"Cancer in the Family."

February

August

"DefiningToday'sEAP."With roots
in the core technology, the current
status of the field.

"EAPs in the Schools." Faculty/
staff assistance in universities;
emerging student assistance.

March

September

"Health Care Reform —Being Part
of the Solution." Successful models
for EAPsto consider, here and abroad.

"NAFTA —and EAP — an uneasy
relationship?" Change will stretch
from the border states and beyond.
What are the EAP implications?

April
"Layoffs — Coping with Change."
What are EAP success stories?
May
"TQM — Terror, Queasiness,
Maelstrom?" How can the EAP help
TQM to work?

EAPs amidst managed care; meeting
greater client demands; information
links; evaluation process; image as
perceived by business; etc.

July

October
"The EAP in Small Business: An
Update."

November/December
A review of public policy affecting
EAPs throughout the nation.

June

►~

"The EAP: Future of a Profession."

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Sandra Turner, President

I

George Cobbs, Vice President
Tamara Cagney, Secretary
Madeleine Tramm, Treasurer
REGIONAL REPRESENTATIVES
Ann K. Baxter
Eastern Region
James R. O'Hair

Mid-Atlantic Region
Philip A. Hess
Mid-West Region
Jon Christensen
North Central Region
Carole A. Stevenson
Pacific Region
B.R.(Bob) Challenger
Southern Region
Janet Mug
Southwest Region
Robert A. Mines
Western Region
Aroon Shah
Canadian Region
Vaughn Mosher
International Region
6
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Joseph T. O'Sullivan, Legislative &Public
Policy
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Employee Assistance
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STAFF
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The EAPA

delugeofthe latestsubstance
abuse statistics from Joseph
A. Califano, 1r., who had
isteners clamoringfor copies
of his keynote address. A
model of a successful EAP
working in concertwith managed care;
a spirited debate on that same topic and
reasons for EAPs to take the opportunity
in Anaheim to gain knowledge in, and
ask questions about, managed care.
Background information and tips on
helping culturally diverse clients— not
from a text, but from Asian, Latino and
African-American speakers who gave
participants an interval of total
immersion in their cultures. How-tos,
from the elements of EAP, to being an
EAPA chapterofficer,to DoT regulations,
to media relations, to grassroots
lobbying. An up-to-the-minute update
on health care reform from Dr. Eric
Goplerud, Director of Planning and
Policy Implementation, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, and a clarion call for
unity of the EAP field to vigilantly lobby
for and keep guard over mental health
and substance abuse inclusions in
President Clinton's "Health Security
Act." The honoring of EAP's 1972
founders and those ~n
exemplify the field's best
is just a taste of the EF
annual conference. T
magic in the air in Di
from November 13 to 17,
within the realities facir
employee assistance
professionals as they
move through the
1990s. Rather than
provide a token
.paragraph on each
workshop, forum or
meeting,afewexamples
follow.

Keynote Address
Califano, former Se

retary of Health Education and Welfare
and now chairman and president ofthe
Center on Addiction and Substance
Abuse (CASH), quickly grew serious
about his subject of the day, citing a
myriad of statistics which included 54
million Americans addicted totobacco,
18.5 million addicted to alcohol, six
mi II ion who use marijuana at least once
a week, 12 million who abuse
psychotropic drugs, some one million
who use black market steroids. "Pot" is
making a comeback,said Califano,and
college binge drinking is on the rise.
The data gathered by CASA and others
continued. Then Califano brought the
subject home to the EAP. Two-thirds of
those using illegal drugs are employed;
17 percent of the workforce has a
problem with alcohol; health costs for
alcoholics are twice those of other
members of the workforce and the risk
of being involved in an accident runs
two to three times greater. His
organization, CASA, is dedicated to
research and education. Califano posed
several challenges which must be met
before substance abusecan be effectively
tackled. Included among those
mandates:
• End the denial. "The root of

the problem is not in far-away places,"
said Califano, adding that we cannot
blame producers of drugs in other
countriesforourproblems."Wearefive
percent of the world's population; we
consume 60 percent of the world's
cocaine." Califano decried the "chorus
of politicians who say, 'If all the king's
horses and all the king's men can't fix
the problem, give us more horses and
men'."
•We must learn tothinkofaddiction
as a chronic disease. "Continuing care
is as important to the drug abuser as
insulin is to the diabetic."
• We must shed our "drug-of-themonth mentality," he said. Bringing all
forces to bear to shut the I id on one drug

doesn't work for abusers who "ricochet
from drug to drug."
Califano
applauded
the
"extraordinary job" EAPs perform,
calling their intervention and
educational work "critical." He also
urged EAPs to become a stronger part of
the corporate structure and to help move
the issues of substance abuse into the
"mainstream of American discourse."
Crack Cocaine
;look at crack cocaine
d by Dr. Cardwell C.
~sident of Cardwell C.
Associates. Nuckols,
goodbye to the White
~caine Addiction &
:overy (1992, HSI and
~AB Books, a division of
McGraw-Hill, Inc.)and
Cocaine:
From

Dependency
to
Recovery(2nd Edition,
1989,TAB Books),said
that for the crack
addict, the leading
cause of death is
hom icide...the second
Conference
continued on pg. 34
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.:The helm position within an EAPA chapter requires
~ commitment, knowledge, skills and diplomacy. The
benefit oftwo days of training for the new officers will
be seen throughout the coming year.
First there was the Thunderin'100. There was the Dirty
',j
30. Now make way for the Energetic 80, as women's ~
,~ v
issues —and women leaders —come to the fore. One
..,.~`
needed energy to make it to the 6:30 a.m. Women's
Breakfast on
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Tuesday
'~ ~~~ ~ ~`~
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The topic of managed care
pro, con and learning to
thrive within —was given its
due during a debate on
Saturday,workshopson Sunday
and Tuesday, and a research
workshop on Monday. The
debate was facilitated by Jim
Francek (King, Chapman,
Broussard &Gallagher, Inc.,
NY) and featured panelists
Michael Freeman and Larry
Stockman (Institute for
Behavioral
Healthcare),
Donald Young (CONOCO,
Inc.), Lee Wenzel (Managed
Care Systems), Mary Lehman
(AFL-CIO,
McDonald
Department of Community
Services), Mardee Beckman
(McDonnell
Douglas
Corporation) and Maurie
Cullen (LCSW, CA).

e

E_n~>
The EAPA Board of Directors
approved a proposal to
restructure itself: a ballot to be
presented to voting EAPA
memberssome time this month
will present the options of
retaining the present structure
or making the Board a fully
elected body but with four
special positions.
~~

i
The prestigious John J. Hennessy Award for
employee assistance excellence was accepted
by Ann Matthewsfor award-winner Terrence R.
Cowan —long considered one of EAPA's most
active members. Added significance was given
the occasion as Jack Hennessy (far right) was
the presenter during the November 13 Labor
Luncheon. Also pictured (from left) Jeff
Chamberlin,Doug Maguire,George Cobbs,Jack
McCabe and Bill Fogarty. Fogarty's address to
the assembly is covered on page 37.
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Jerre Van Gorder, a judge on the
Anaheim Workers Comp Appeals
Board,heard arguments in thefictitious
case of affable-if-not-credible )ohn
Saskwatch .(John Hodson, Workers
Compensation Administrator, Applied
Risk Management, CA), a former
employee of
the fictitious
First National
Bank of EI
Segundo,

.r

i-,~_,
~4

~

r
4

Getting their Mousercise are Dance Machine Chairperson Emeritus
Chip Drotos (foreground) and a pack of dancing dynamos.

,.~pictured
above.

Possibly #1 in attendance was the workshop on the topic which many EAPs
consider their #1 concern: "Violence in the Workplace," moderated by john Hooks
and Bill Corey (Ford Motor Company, MI) and addressed by Walter Reichman
(Baruch College, NY),William Durkin(ARCO,CA)and Kevin Flynn(EAP Consultant,
CA).
Nancy Bailey received the EAPA's first Humanitarian Award for her work in
Guatemala;Don Godwin was given the Member ofthe Year Award for his work which
began in the EAP field's infancy at the beginning of N IAAA to his continuing work as
"one of the best advisors" many members have
had the privilge to know. Terry Cowan was
awarded the John J. Hennessy Award for
extraordinary contributionstotheadvancement
of organized labor assistance programs
throughout the world.Jack Freckman was given
the Special Recognition Award for work on the
EAP licensure law of Tennessee. Special
.r~'"'
Recognition Honorable Mentionswereawarded
°~ ,
to: Tom Hayashi; Kathleen Handron; Peter
Steddonand Linda Hoskinson;Jimmie Wooding;
`~±'
Jon Christensen; and Gary Maltbia.
Emeritus Membership was presented to Jesse F.
MacBeth; Betty A. Reddy; Hugh ~. Gallagher;
'
Arthur R. Bryant; and E. Hal Davidson.
Don Godwin
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Five New
Committee Chairs
Join EAPA Board
EAPA welcomes five new chairpersons, appointed by
President Sandra Turner, to the Board of Directors. Three
additional chairpersons — Development, Research and

MEMBERSHIP
Carol N. Irons, CEAP, LCSW, Employee
Assistance Coordinator, Amoco
Corporation, IL, joined Amoco in the Fall
of 1989 as a result of the expansion of
Employee Assistance services at its
headquarters in Chicago. She has a
graduate social work degree from the
University of Chicago and is an LCSW in
the State of Illinois. Her employee
assistance credentials over a 13-year period include development
of Cook County Government's internal EAP, directing six
professional staff there and, in the early 1980s, participation as an
EAP contractor for small business in the State of Illinois. Carol has
served on the Illinois Chapter Board of EAPA as its president and
secretary; she has also served as Benefits Committee chairperson.

Treatment —will be profiled in the February edition ofthe
Exchange.

CONSULTANTS
Daniel C. Smith, CEAP, is a Regional Vice
President of Sales for CORE Management
Inc., a health care and disability
management firm established in 1993
through a pooling of interests of Integrated
Behavioral Health (IBH) and Core
Management Inc. (CMI) and based in
Southern California. PriortojoininglBHin
October 1991, Dan was Director of
Employee Assistance Programs and Human Resources Risk
Management for McDonnell Douglas Corporation where he
received national recognition for the quality of both the MDC EAP
and the corporation's innovative managed behavioral health
system. His educational background includes B.A. and M.A.
degrees in Counseling Psychology from Chapman College and an
M.B.A. from National University.
~; ~
{~~ ,
?;~~'
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~
°""
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"^~''

~~

PROGRAM MANAGER
Richard G. Wall,CEAP,J.D., Coordinator
EAP, Mobil Corporation, Fairfax, VA,
received his J.D. degree from New York
/~
Law School in 1972. and was admitted to
the Bar of the State of New York in 1973.
`~, HebecameaCEAPin1990andiscurrently
r
completing an M.S.W. degree at Virginia
Commonwealth University. After
practicing law for six years, Rick started
The Institute for Youth Advocacy at Covenant House in New York
City with a grant from Mobil. He developed a crisis intervention
center and advocacy program for runaway and homeless youths
with legal problems. From his position in Mobil Corporation
Benefits Planning, he developed the successful proposal to institute
a comprehensive employee assistance program.
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PUBLIC POLICY
COMMITTEE
Joseph T. O'Sullivan, CEAP, Director EAP,
Commonwealth
Energy Systems,
Cambridge,MA,isalsoanOperatingPartner
in the Employee Assistance Services in
Manchester, New Hampshire. He is the
former president of the Massachusetts
Chapter of EAPA,a member of the National
`~~'~ `
Advisory Board for Chemical Dependency
for the American Gas Association since 1989 and was a member of
the National Chemical Dependency Task Force at Edison Electric
Institute from 1988-1992. Joe intends to emphasize a role for EAPs
within health care reform and believesthat"EAPs must be recognized
as both the starters and the finishers in the health care process."

WOMEN'S ISSUES
Linda L. Sturdivant, Employee Counselor,
Presbyterian University Hospital ECS,
Lothrop, University of Pittsburgh Medical
Center, Pittsburgh, PA, has experience in
the counseling and mental health field
spanning 15 years. Prior to her present
position,she was an EAP consultant at USX
Corporation for three years. She has held
numerous positions in the EAPA Pittsburgh
Chapter, including chapter president (two terms) and secretary,
and serves on several advisory boards and committees, including
the United Way and the Pennsylvania Organization of Women in
Early Recovery. Linda obtained a B.S. in Psychology and a Masters
of Education in Rehabilitation Counseling from the University of
Pittsburgh and is two courses shy of her Masters of Public
Management degree from Carnegie Mellon University.

Available for Order

22nd Annual Conference

Receive the expertise of professionals on the cutting edge of the EAP environment, across the spectrum of issues
facing today's EAP. Audio tapes of many of the forums and workshops of the 22nd Annual Conference are
available, ~ $8.50 per tape(album for eight tapes also available, for $6.00). There is a ten percent discount on
12 tapes (12-tape album available for $7.00); 15 percent discount on 24 tapes and albums; and 20 percent
discount on entire set.

AUDIO TAPES
_S1
S2
S3
_S4
_S5
S6
S7
S8
S9
_S10
_S11
S12
S13
S14
_S15
_S16
_S17

Labor's Evolving EAP Role (2 tapes)
International Forum (2 tapes)
Managed Care & EAP Debate (2 tapes)
Crack Cocaine: WorWClinical/
Community Challenge(2 tapes)
EAP's Linkage with Safety (2 tapes)
Health Care Reform (2 tapes)
Putting Managed Care Puzzle Together (2)
Value Added Impact of EAPs(2 tapes)
Financial Responsibility (2 tapes)
Strategies: EAP as Human Resource
Consultant(2 tapes)
Peer Prevention Programs, Practical
Applications/Risks/Rewards (2 tapes)
Maximizing EAP Effectiveness (2 tapes)
Ethnic &Cultural Concerns Forum (2)
The Eldercare Connection (2 tapes)
TheCaringGeneration:ImplicationsforEAPs
(2 tapes)
Law Enforcement EAPs: Who Helps the
Helper?(2 tapes)
Women in Leadership (2 tapes)

_S18 Research Roundtable (2 tapes)
S19 DoT Update (1 tape)
_S21 Mental Health &Psychiatric Client Who
Keeps Coming Back (2 tapes)
_S22 The New DoT Regulations: Rural Health
Care Reform (2 tapes)
S23 Responding to Disasters/Social Unrest (2)
S24 Outcome Research &Managed Care (2)
S25 Violence in the Workplace(2 tapes)
_S26 Innovations in Brief Treatment and
Aftercare for EAPs(2 tapes)
S27 Brief Treatment Approach for EAP (2)
S28 Depression in the Workplace(2 tapes)
S29 Gay &Lesbian Forum (2 tapes)
S30 Mock Nearing: Workers' Comp.(1 tape)
_S31 Graying of Alcoholic Family System (2)
_S32 Cooperative Labor/Management
Membership Assistance Program (MAP)
(2 tapes)
S33 EAP/Managed Care: Effective Network (2)
_S34 Diversity: Implications for EAP Treatment
&Efficacy: Research/Practice Findings (2)

Payment for Audio Tapes
x $8.50
Number of Tapes
Albums (See cost at top) number/size
Discounts (See quantity ordering at top)
Postage and Handling:

$
$
$

U.S.A.($1 per tape + $2 per order)
Canada ($1 per tape + $3 per order)

$
$

Overseas ($1 per tape + $15 per order —Air Mail)
Subtotal
Rush Order Fee ($7.50 —add to total)
Grand Total
❑Check

_S35 Workplace Peer Support Groups/
Networks: Underdeveloped EAP
Resources (1 tape)
_S36 The Interface of AFL-CIO Community
Services & EAPs (1 tape)
_S37 Quetzalcoatl, Cortez y La Malinche:
Learning from Them in Counseling
Latinos (1)
S38 Paradox: EAP Professionals/Roles (1 tape)
_S39 Determining Value &Reshaping EAP
Services (2 tapes)
_S40 "Let Me Entertain You": Experiential
Techniques for EAP (2 tapes)
_S41 New Strategies for HIV Management with
Supervisors; HIV Positive Employee, Coworkers and Significant Others (2 tapes)
_S42 Substance Abuse Outcome Evaluations (2)
S43 Natl. Health Ins. Public Policy Forum (1)
_S44 EAP Health Promotion — WhaYs the
Connection?(2 tapes)
_S45 Occupational Medical Forum (2 tapes)

$
$
$
$

Charge to:❑American Express ❑MasterCard O Visa ❑Discover(Do not use Discover for Conference Proceedings)
Account Number
Exp. Date

Signature

Note: Orders for audio tapes from outside the U.S. must be paid for by American Express or U.S. funds. Payment must
accompany order. There is a $25.00 minimum on all credit card orders for audio tapes.
To write for audio tapes, mail this page to: NATIONWIDE RECORDING SERVICE, INC., 15385 South 169 Highway,
Olathe, Kansas, 66062. Audio tapes order may also be placed by telephone (913-780-3307) or fax (913-780-5091).

Print Name and Address or Attach Business Card
Name

Title

Telephone

Company

Adaress

City

State

Zip

1993 ANNUAL CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS
Also available,from EAPA,Inc. is the 1993 Annual Conference Proceedings, at $10 per copy(includes postage), payable by check, American
Express, Visa, or MasterCard. Abstracts, handouts and charts from many of the workshops of the 22nd Annual Conference are included in
this 200-page,8'/z" x 11"soft-cover book.Fill out address(and credit card information if ordering by American Express, MasterCard or Visa)
and mail to: EAPA, Inc., 4601 N. Fairfax Drive, Suite 1001, Arlington, VA, 22203; aher January 24, mail to 2101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite
500, Arlington, Virginia, 22201.

Assessments and Resource Counselin
for Eldercare: A Dynamis Process
by Ruth Perschbacher

yths and realities about aging, emotional
needs, and family patterns make eldercare a
dynamic process. An EAP professional
evaluates which of these areas are the most
significant for each worker's situation. Once
this assessment is completed, resource counseling is
directed toward the most appropriate services. Since
eldercare issues can span the gamut of legal, financial,
and health care concerns, EAP agencies may want to
consider hiring EAP professionals who specialize in
resource counseling for the, aging or contract with
agencies who provide this service. The primary goal for
resource counseling is to maintain a parent's maximal
level of independence and long term health. This results
in a healthier older adult and a worker who is less
stressed with caregiving responsibilities.
`ILlymother'sdoingterrible,"Alyson, aclientandfriertd,
related to me over the phone. "She can't live alone much
longer.lguess 1'!1just have to quit work so she can live with
me."1hadR'tseen Alyson's rnotherMartha since!'dmoved
outoftown several months earlier. Alyson's words echoed
in my head and dampened my spirits as 1 walked up the
long steps of Martha's Victorian house. The crisp fall
12
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morning filled with vibrant red maple leaves reminded me
ofmyspiritedfriend— before she had started declining. As
rang the door6e[[, 1 imagined Martha opening the door,
bent over, Rot recognizing me, sending me away.
"Ruth, you look worried. Don't het, 1've fixed your
favorite sandwiches—cream cheese and hotpepperje[ly."
The large wooden door swung open aad Martha grabbed
me in a strong, tightembrace. The afternoon wasfilled with
surprise as Martha easily moved about her house showing
meherm~rltipleartprojects, discussingarecentblunderof
the President's advisors, complaining about the "nosy old
lady"who lives next door, and lamenting about her `poor
dear sister who is in miserable shape."In every way, she
appeared to 6e the same Martha !had always known.
When 1 asked about her health, she complained matter of
factly aboutthe "ordinary inconveniences ofan old body."
Why, /wondered, did Alyson Feel that her mother was
rapidly progressing toward total dependence?
Alyson's perception about her mother probably
stemmed from misconceptions about the aging process,
Alyson's own personal needs, and unresolved family
issues. Martha explained,"If Alyson calls and I'm not out
of bed by9 a.m.,she thinks living alone is making me too

tired. What does she expect of an 80-year-old with
arthritis, a midnight bridge game and a boyfriend?"
Ordinary aches and pains of old age are often accepted
as a part of life by the aging person,but a daughter or son
may believe these are signs of impending debilitation.
Many people are not familiar with or have exaggerated
views of the ordinary changes that occur with aging.
Hearing, vision,sleeping, smell, taste and cognition can
all be altered by normal aging. The effects of food,
medications and alcohol can be quite different in an
elderly person.
Personal needs and unresolved family issues often
become heightened when concerns aboutan aging parent
emerge. In Martha's words, "Alyson worries about me
constantly, especially since her children left home. I
guess she thinks I'm her child now." If Alyson doesn't
recognize her need to care for others,she may have an
unconscious need to see her mother as dependent. She
may still need her mother's acceptance and may seek
this by attempting to care for Martha. Her mother's age
alone may cause anxiety about death, raising fears that
Martha may die before Alyson can resolve her true
feelings about their relationship.
The EAP professional's assessment begins by
determining the worker's own beliefs about aging, his/
her emotional needs and past family patterns.

Aging Myths
A worker's beliefs about aging can have a significant
impact onhow he/she respondsto an aging parent. If,for
example, aging is viewed as a time of dependency, the
worker may assume a parent needs more help than is
actually warranted. There are some key aging myths an
EAP professional needs to evaluate to determine their
impact on the worker.
StereotypingBehaviorPatterns.Many people believe,
especially with regard to their parents, that the elderly
tend to act "their age" and do not desire new challenges
or relationships in their lives. Research shows that the
elderly are more unlike each other than any other age
group.This is attributed to the variety and number of life
experiences they have undergone. A child may not be
comfortable with a mother or father having a relationship
with someone else; it may not fit with his or her concept
of aging and/or it may be a painful reminder of a parent's
death.When parents begin to act in unpredictable ways,
children may believe the parent is physically or mentally
frail when, in fact, the parent simply may be exercising
free choice.
Asking probing questions about the parents overall
ability to make decisions can help establish whether
competency or autonomy are the key issues.
My Parents Need Me to Take Over. Children of aging
parents sometimes equate caring about their parents
with taking over for their parents whether or not the
actual need justifies this action. Loving your relatives
and living with them are two different things." EAP
professionals need to evaluate whether the employee is
making decisions for a parent rather than with a parent.
Too often children assume a parent wants them to take
over without ever directly asking the parent what he/she
would prefer. This type of decision making can result in
employees reducing their work hours or leaving their

employment to care for a parent who may not need or
want this type of care.

Emotional Needs and Family Patterns
The EAP professional assesses the worker's personal
needs and the influence that family patterns play. Many
ofthesame skills that are used in completing assessments
of other types ofstress factors are applicable.Four areas
that merit special attention are the worker's role in the
family, a history of abuse,family caregiving values, and
family money values.
Role in the Family. Has the worker been considered
a family peace maker or a favored child who has always
done as the parents expected? A child who has played
one of these roles is often looked to as the primary
caregiver.This may be expected despite other obligations
to family and work. Other siblings with fewer
responsibilities may not be expected to help because of
traditional family patterns. These siblings may resent
being left out of the caregiving role, venting frustration
onto the primary caregiver.
History of Abuse.Feelings about previous emotional
or physical abuse are likely to surface as a child becomes
more involved in a parent's caregiving. This could lead
to the adult child abusing the parent or trying to over
compensate due to feelings of guilt. A child who has
been rejected bythe parent may now try to gain approval
by taking over the caregiving.This child may once again
be the subject of ridicule and rejection and may take
more and more time away from work in a futile attempt
to please the parent.
Caregiving Values. The belief that "I need to quit
work and take care of my mother" reflects a narrow
definition ofcaring.This definition may have been passed
down from parents or grandparents when most
caregiving took place in the home and many people did
not live to see old age or frailty.
Money Values. A family's values about money can
have a major impact on caregiving.Preserving a parent's
financial assets for his/her children may be a long
standing family tradition. The parent may not be willing
to spend money on health care,especially nursing home
care or extensive in-home care, because it will deplete
assets that are intended as inheritance. Some siblings
may reject the use of expensive health care options to
preserve their legacy. The primary caregiver may be
caught in a quagmire of family squabbles about paying
for needed services; the worker may deplete personal
assets or hesitate to use resources in order to avoid
criticism by the parent or other siblings.
Once the EAP professional has assessed the worker's
beliefs about aging, emotional needs and family
patterns, the older adult's situation is reviewed to
determinewhetherthe normal aging process or a disease
process is involved. When this final assessment step is
completed, resource counseling begins.

Normal Aging
Many aspects of the normal aging process appear to
be disease related. A person may occasionally have
difficulty walking or, at times, have forgotten the names
of familiar people. Poor gait could be a sign of
JANUARY 7994
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overextending one's self, a result of poor vision, or
perhaps the development of severe osteoporosis.
Occasional memory lapses may be a result of fatigue,
medications, alcohol, or depression, or may be a
precursor of any number of metabolic disturbances.
Resource for Determining Normal Aging Versus
Disease. Sorting through the multitude of possibilities
requires a physician skilled in geriatric care.
Recommending a thorough physical examination of the
older adult by a qualified professional is a simple
intervention that can clarify the actual care needs. The
results of this examination should be shared with the
older adult's primary physician.
Normal aging changes can usually be addressed
through adaptations that enhance independence.Achild
wants to take care of an older adult. Encouraging the
child to care for the older adult by finding ways to
increase his or her parent's independence and safety
will provide an outlet for frustration. Following are some
normal aging changes and sample adaptations.
Falls. For any older adults, falls are a particularly
serious problem that can lead to severe and permanent
mobility impairments.Gait problems may be reduced by
making the home more"aging friendly." Removingthrow
rugs, installing better lighting, and hand rails are
examples ofsimple interventions.If a home has a number
of stairs leading into it, the child may want to talk with
the parent aboutthe safety risks this presents,suggesting
a move to a one-story home or using another entry that
has fewer stairs.
Higher Risk for Accidents. The elderly person living
alone is at a high risk for accidents. A child's source of
stress may be concern that the parent will need help and
will be unable to get to a phone. Many communities have
programs where an elderly person is checked on daily
by a police officer, postal carrier, etc. There are also
emergency response systems available that an older
adult can wear; if he/she falls, a button can be pushed to
activate an emergency response. Neighbors are also
good resources for checking in on someone living alone.
Additional Resources for Decreasing Falls and
Accidents. Occupational and physical therapists who
specialize in geriatric care are excellent resources for
increasing independence and safety. The EAP
professional may also want to refer to the following two
publications:
The Doa61e Renewable Home provides practical tips
on adapting a home.It can be ordered for free from AARP
Fulfillment,601 E Street, NW,Washington,DC 20049,2024342277.
Safety Begins at Home describes accident prevention
and increasing functioning. It can be obtained from Los
Amigos Research and Education Institute,P.O.Box 3500,
Los Amigos Station, Downey, CA 90242, 310-940-7402
Vision &Hearing &Resources for Improving.
Changes in vision and hearing are a normal aging process.
While they can be irritating for the older adult, many
adaptations are available. Vision can be addressed with
new glasses, large print reading material, and book
tapes.Yearly exams byan eye specialist skilled in geriatric
care is critical. Hearing impairments can be reduced
with the use of hearing devices,by decreasingthe number
of competing noises in the environment, and specific
14
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communication techniques. Audiologists and speech
therapists can recommend effective treatment methods.
Memory Lapses&Related Resources. Memory lapses
are not significant unless they actually impair an older
adult's activities of daily living (ADCs) skills. If ADL
functioning is affected, the physician's exam should
explore medications, alcohol use, nutrition, and
metabolic disturbances. If medications are causing
memory problems, simply changing to a different
medication or eliminating the medication may alleviate
the symptoms. The person may be taking medications
sporadically or the family physician may not know about
medications from other physicians. The examining
physician should investigate and make specific
recommendations and provide education regarding side
effects of medicines and medication regimen.
Alcohol can also be a factor in memory changes. An
older adult may not be aware of the amount of alcohol
consumed or its affect. Alcohol use or abuse may be a life
long pattern. Counseling regarding the effects of alcohol
on one's physical status and the safety risk may be
indicated.
Nutritional needs are likely to change over time. The
older adult,especially living alone,may not eat a regular,
well balanced diet due to fatigue or lack of desire to cook
only for one's self.The physician should explore this and
possibly recommend consultation with a dietitian.
If there is depression, psychotherapy and/or
medication may be considered.It is important to keep in
mind that some older adults may have an aversion to
seeking mental health services.Therapists who specialize
in aging can suggest how a child might best approach the
parent on this issue, e.g., a peer support group might be
more palatable than individual therapy sessions.
If memory lapses are due to normal fatigue, rest
periods may be useful. Writing reminder notes and
simply relaxing about occasional forgetfulness can help
an older adult cope effectively. Workshops are often
available in communities to help older adults enhance
their memory skills.
If memory lapses are related to an acute illness, the
interventions are likely to be relatively simple. However,
the child may want to make arrangements to have
someone stay with the parent during recovery. This will
prevent the older adultfrom overextending him or herself
and perhaps falling, leading to a more severe problem.
The possibilities for coping with the normal aging
process are endless. Other professionals who the EAP
professional and employee may consult are nurses,
social workers, psychologists or activity therapists.
Specialization in geriatrics is a key criterion for getting
effective recommendations.Ifany changes are not related
to normal aging, a disease process is explored.

Disease Process
If a disease process is present, a coordinated plan of
treatment should be initiated by the physician who
examines the older adult. With his or her approval, the
child should receive specific information about the older
adult's condition and an explanation of the state—of—
the—art treatment options.The EAP professional should
caution the employee not to accept vague explanations

such as "the problem is old age." Important information
includes: average length of illness, level of debilitation,
rate of decline, the treatment options, and the side
effects of treatments. Knowing these factors can help
the employee plan ahead and prevent a crisis situation
that could lead to leaving his or her job. Following are
some items to consider in this long range planning.
Care Fa~pectations&Resource Counseling.Expanding
the worker's definition of caring is an important goal to
achieve.Many workers may have rigid concepts ofcaring,
e.g.,"My mother will never go to a nursing home." The
EAP professional needs to be prepared to point out the
multitude of care options available. For example, the
employee may not be the most qualified person to care
for the older adult's physical needs. A nurse, physical
therapist, or other professional's expertise may be
needed for the best quality of care. A nursing home or
extensive in-home care may at some point be the best
alternative for providing skilled care, maintaining the
employee's job, and nurturing the employee's
relationships with spouse and children.
The EAP professional should facilitate a discussion
with the employee concerning beliefs about caring for
the older adult. If the employee prefers to reduce work
hours or quit the job rather than see the older adult
reside in an institutional setting, keeping the employee
on the job will be dependent on exploring in-home and
community care options.
The EAP professional should encourage the employee
to discuss with the older adult his or her expectations of
the child. It is possible that the older adult would prefer
to live in a supervised care setting, e. g., nursing home,
board and care home,etc., rather than the child's home.
When incompatible differences occur between an adult
child and his/her parent, mediation is a process to
consider. This offers a chance for both parties to clearly
state their expectations and develop a feasible caregiver/
care receiver agreement.
Exploring other family members' roles in caregiving
can expand the resources available to the employee. A
goal for intervention is to anticipate family conflicts and
direct an employee toward providing coordinated care
for the older adult rather than prolonging a family feud.
The child may be a target for criticism from siblings who
live out of town;this may be avoided by contacting them
early on and involving them in. the caregiving, e.g.,
financial assistance toward adult day care or in-home
services.
Health Care Options&Resource Counseling.Staying
at home as long as possible is the goal of most older
adults, who should direct all their own health care
decisions as long as possible. Home health care,
homemaker services,and adult day care agencies should
be contacted regarding the services they offer and their
charges.Home-delivered and congregate meal programs
and transportation services are available in most
communities at minimal charges.
Once staying at home is no longer an option,
institutional care is the next step on the continuum.
Board and care homes or nursing homes are the two
primary alternatives. Board and care homes usually
provide minimal health services. There are no federal
guidelines for these facilities; quality of care, charges,

and services vary dramatically from state to state.
Nursing homes that are certified for Medicare and
Medicaid provide skilled nursing care. Since these
facilities are federally regulated, the services are
standardized with some variations.The EAP professional
needs to caution workers that Medicare provides minimal
coverage for nursing home care. Some facilities offer
both board and care and nursing home services; when a
resident's health declines, he/she may be moved to a
different unit, but will stay in the same facility. Getting
the older adult's name on the waiting list of one or more
preferred facilities is important to ensuring a place when
needed. A facility in close proximity to the workplace
would be helpful to consider.
The older adult's desires regarding medical treatment
options at the end of one's life should be included in
exploring health care options. Documentation of these
wishes through a formal advance directive relieves the
employee of an additional burden that could escalate
into a family crisis if the older adult becomes unable to
make his or her own decisions in the future.
Consumer Resources for Health Care Options. A
primary goal for intervention is for the employee to
become an educated consumer, evaluating available
services for their quality and price. The following
resources may prove helpful:
Making Wise DecisionsforLong-Term Care offers simple
descriptions of long-term care services including a
consumer check list. It is available free from AARP
Program Resource Department, Order #D12435, P.Q.
Box 19269, Station R, Washington, DC 20036.
Guide to Choosing a Nursing Home can be obtained
from the U.S.Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Care Financing Administration, 6325 Security
Boulevard, Baltimore, MD 21207, Pub. No. HCFA-02174.
Eldercare continued on pg. 43
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by Carol Speight and Les

he Family and Medical Leave Act(FMLA) of 1993
was signed into law and the key provisions ofthe act
became effective on August S, 1993. For employers
with collective bargaining agreements' in effect as of that
date, the act becomes effective upon the termination of the
collective bargaining agreement, or February 5, 1994,
whichever is earlier.
Affecting employers with 50 or more employees, FMLA
is applicable to most corporations which utilize Employee
Assistance Programs. What impact will the FMLA have on
EAP practices? What role can the EAP assume in the
execution ofFMLA?The Universityof Pennsylvania Faculty/
Staff Assistance Program provides a context in which to
examine the nuances of FMLA and the many challenges of
implementing this new policy.

Provisions of the Act
FMLA provides employees up to 12 weeks of unpaid job
protected leaveduring any 12-month period,forthe purpose
of dependent care and personal illness, including:
• The birth or adoption of a child;
• The need to care for a spouse, a child under 18 or a
parent who has a "serious health condition"; or
•A "serious health condition"thatpreventstheemployee
from performing his or her job.
Health benefits are to continue during the leave with the
same ratio of employer/employee payment that existed
prior to the leave. The eligible employee may also take
FMLA leave himself or herself because of a serious health
condition that makes the employee unable to perform his or
her job functions.
The FMLA benefit may be denied to salaried employees
within the highest ten percent of the workforce if the leave
would create "substantial and grievous injury" to business
operations. And there is no cost to taxpayers, because
workers are not eligible for unemployment or other
governmental compensation when leave is taken.
Corporations believe thatthe advantages provided by the
legislation include:
•improved competitive advantagethrough the retention
of valuable employees;
•minimal costs when comparedtothecostsofhiringand
training new workers; and
• the job protection feature provides an incentive to
return to work.(Reich, 1993.)
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The EAP Involvement
Increasingly, referrals to EAPs are likely to involve
problems either directly or indirectly related to family
functioning(Wright &Beach,1992),due to the overlap and
interdependence of work and family roles (Kanter, 1977;
Voydanoff, 1987). It is therefore appropriate that FMLA
issues become part of the EAP's "broadening brush."
Duringth~ lastfourdecades,thecomposition ofthe labor
force has changed dramatically. One of the most striking
and substantial changes has been in the number and
proportion of women who have remained in the labor force
throughout their childbearing years. In addition, laborforce
statistics indicate that:
•There is a significant increase indual-career families.
About 60 percent of working men have wives working
outside the home.
• An estimated 20 - 30 percent of employees care for
elderly relatives.
• By 1995,66 percent ofthe mothers of preschoolers and
75 percentofthe mothers ofschool-age chiIdrer~ are expected
to be in the labor force.
• The workforce will grow slowly and become older,
with increased numbers of women,and will become more
disadvantaged.(The Changing Workforce: 1992.)
As EAPs continue to evolve, it is important that the
profession embrace a broader policy and systemic
perspective of an impaired employee. EAP professionals
need to confront the information about the potentially
complex way that family experiences, work experiences
and other psycho-social factors can influence individual
mental, social and physical health and suggest new
programmatic interventions and strategies that will benefit
both employees and employers.
The University of Pennsylvania's Faculty/Staff Assistance
Program and its worWfamily component, The Family
Resource Center, is responding to these changes in the
workplace.
FMLA Implementation:

The University of Pennsylvania Experience
Prior to FMLA, the University of Pennsylvania did not
have an official maternity or dependent care leave policy.
Employees used a combination of vacation, sick, disability
and unpaid personal leaves for childbirth, and vacation or

concerning the use of paid and unpaid
personal leave to carefor afamily member.
leave in specific situations, questions that
The use of any leave time required the
will have to be resolved on acase-by-case
agreement of an employee's supervisor.
basis.
Utilizing a patchwork of policies for
The final phase of implementing the
dependent care leave is not uncommon
new policy has involved employee and
for most organizations.
supervisor training. The skills of EA
The result of this patchwork approach,
professionals were most valuable during
however, was for most a lack of
this period. While all of the committee
consistency: some employees enjoyed
members and benefits specialists have
long leaves for dependent care, while
detailed knowledgeofthepolicy, manydo
others were granted only a few weeks.
not have experience in effectively
Employees with "uncooperative"
communicating this information to groups
supervisors felt cheated. A few employees
ofemployees.The Family Resource Center
who took leaves reported that their job
has taken a leading role in coordinating
responsibilities and opportunities for Carol Bennett-Speight
advancement were drastically reduced upon their return.
staff training on the policy. The training effort has proved
challengingaswell,hampered bycommunicationproblems,
Parents returning to work after less than 12 weeks of leave
found themselves in a bind: daycare for infants less than
due to a lack of clarity on the content of the training and
three months old is scarce and costly, making the return to
training networks.
work stressful and in some cases impossible. New parents
In spite ofthese chatlenges,the rewards ofour involvement
also complained about how difficult it was to return to work
in the formation of the policy have far outweighed the
with no time off available. Staying home with an ill baby or
difficulties. The new family and medical leave policy has
elderly parentcould result in lostpay and,in some instances,
marked the beginning of a formal initiative in human
disciplinary action. The need to advocate for our clients
resources examining worWfamily benefits, services and
policies. Articles in campus publications have linked familywithin the university was clear.
supportive benefits to increasing diversity in the workforce
We began by researching the leave policies at peer
and to increasing productivity.
institutions. This task was accomplished quite easily using
The nextphaseofthis processwill focusonimplementing
established work/family and EAP networks in universities as
more"family-friendly" work arrangements such asflextime,
well as local corporations. The results were mixed. About
job sharing and telecommuting, through manager training
half of the organizations surveyed had well-defined
as well as policy formation. In the Spring we plan to bring
dependent care leave policies. The others were in much the
together acampus-wide coalition to assess Penn's current
same position as Penn, but many were in the process of
programs and policies and to map out a broader workplace
revisingtheir policies.The resultsofthe research,alongwith
agenda aimed at helping employees meet their work and
a recommendation that Penn's policy by revised, were sent
familyresponsibilities. Possible initiatives includeexpanding
to Human Resources.
part-time opportunities and benefits, providing subsidies to
Shortly thereafter, President Clinton signed the FMLA
employeesfordependentcare and working in the commun ity
into law. When Penn's administration geared up to comply
to improvethequalityand supplyofchildcareandeldercare
with the legislation, F/SAP was invited to participate in an
services. F/SAPS'continuing advocacy for clients during the
inter-departmental committee created to draft a new policy.
formation of the policy was instrumental in moving this
much-needed initiative into the forefront at Penn.
The Process: Challenges and Rewards
Writing a new leave policy was atime-consuming and
someti mesfrustrate ng undertaking. I ntegrating the new policy
into Penn's many existing policies and benefits proved to be
a difficult task. In addition to interpreting the legal
requirements of the FMLA, the Family Leave Task Force
looked for ways to enhance Penn's policy beyond the basic
requirement. The task force recommended that al I benefits,
rather than only health care coverage, be continued during
the leave. We also proposed eliminating the 12-week
limitation if both spouses were employed by the university,
the exclusion of employees in remote worksites, and the
exclusion of the most highly paid employees. Finally, we
recommended thatemployees not be required to exhaustall
of their paid leave time during a family leave.
The lackoftimelycommunication fromtopadministrators
on these enhancements resulted in last-minute revisions.
The final policy required employees to use all paid leave
time as part of the 12 weeks of family leave. Consequently,
human resources personnel were left scrambling to
implement a complicated process of calculating paid and
unpaid leave time. There continue to be many questions

EAPA Child and Family Subcommittee
Recommendations
At its annual meeting .during the EAPA 22nd Annual
Conference in Anaheim, California, the subcommittee
discussed responses to a presentation by EAPA Director of
Government Relations Maureen Kerrigan and made the
following recommendations:
•The definition of"health care provider" should include
employee assistance professionals who are CEAPs. EA
professionals make complex decisions about an employee's
"fitness for duty." Family and medical leave decisions are
already being made routinely by CEAPs.
• The interpretation of caregiving in the legislation is
extremely narrow and limited to the care of a spouse, son,
daughter or parent with a serious health condition. The
recent study on caregiving at Berkeley pointed out that
almost half of Berkeley faculty and staff surveyed were
Family and Medical Leave Act continued on pg. 32
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The Eldercare Connection:
Helpin Emptoyees
Gain Access to Services for Older Adults
by Kathy Young, EAPA
with Ed Sheehy, NAAAA

EAPA

C.O.O. Michael Benjamin, in the November/
December'92 edition of the Exchange, announced a
grant won by EAPA in cooperation with the National
Association of Area Agencies on Aging(NAAAA). Given by
the U.S. Administration on Aging (AoA), this grant was
designed to help link EAPs with the national network of667
local Area Agencies on Aging (AAAs) which receive both
federal and state funds to plan and coordinate a
comprehensive system of home- and community-based
services to help older adults remain independent in their
own homes or choice'of residences. In recent years, a
growlng number ofAAAs have gone d irectly to the workplace
to provide lunch-time seminars, case management,
information and referral, employee support groups,
information fairs, caregiver publications and community
resource directories.
Representatives from a number of associations served on
an advisory comm ittee for the grant; EAPA's representatives,
selected from the WorWFamily Subcommittee, include
Kathleen Beauchesne(Johns Hopkins University; served as
subcommitteechairperson),Deborah Marsala(REACH EAP)
and Carol Speight (University of Pennsylvania Faculty and
Staff Assistance Program).

Workshops Provide Networking Opportunities
In 1993, EAPA hosted two workshops on "The Eldercare
Connection: Helping EAPs to Help Employed Caregivers,"
providing information on how AAAs and EAPs can work
together at the local level to support employed caregivers.
Deborah Marsala presented at the Western District
Conference in Portland, OR and Carol Speight presented at
the Eastern/Mid-Atlantic Conference in Williamsburg, VA.
Athird presentation was conducted atthe annual conference
in Anaheim, CA.
In July, NAAAA hosted a networking breakfast at its
annual conference. Sponsored by COPE, Inc. and the
Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments and the
local AAAs,the session brought together the D.C. Chapter
of'EAPA with representatives of the Aging Network from
around the country. The networking breakfast was kicked
off with greetings by Marta McKinnon from COPE, Inc.,
Michael Benjamin, and Cheryll Schramm, President of
NAAAA and Director of Atlanta's Aging Services Division.
Kathleen Beauchesne, along with Debra Myers of Mass
Eldercare (a state association of AAAs in Massachusetts),
presented eldercare topics. The breakfast, sponsored by
COPE, Inc., the Metropolitan Washington Council of
Governments, and local AAAs, made apparent the mutual
18
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benefit of a relationship which opens doors both ways —to
eldercare resources and to caregivers in the workplace.

Pilot Sites Conduct Employee Forums
Atlanta, Boston, Los Angeles and Philadelphia,selected by
virtue ofthe strength of both EAPA chapter and local AAA,are
the first sites for co-sponsorship of eldercare forums for local
employers. The forums are designed to help raise awareness
ofthe impact ofcaregivi ng on an employee;they also faciI itate
an exchange of information between EAPs and AAAs about
the range of eldercare services available in the home and
community, and establish a channel of communications for
future referrals and follow-up.

Grant Products to be Distributed through EAPA
Through data collected from the four pilot sites, project
staff will produce a technical assistance guide to help other
EAPA chapters and AAAs conduct similar educational
programs in their communities. In addition, a training
module,designed to helpsensitize managersand supervisors
about eldercare issues, will help a manager identify the
signs ofstress and behaviorthat may arise when an employee
is struggling to juggle work and eldercare responsibilities.

Partnerships Will Grow with Aging Population
Although the grant is scheduled to be completed in
February, 1994, both EAPA and NAAAA anticipate that the
dialogue between local EAPA chapters and AAAs will
continue and expand. For more information on this project
or to obtain information on AAAs, contact Edward Sheehy
at the National Association of Area Agencies on Aging,
(202) 296-8130.

"800" Number to Eldercare Resources
The Eldercare Locator, 1-800-677-1116, is a national
toll-free telephone number which can provide EAPs and
employees with a referral to local information and
assistance in the older person's community. A variety of
services available via the Eldercare Locator includes:
•home-delivered meals •transportation
• legal assistance •housing options •adult daycare
• senior center programs •home health services
• elder abuse prevention •nursing home ombudsman.
The Eldercare Locator hours of service are 9 a.m.to 11
p.m. Eastern Time, Monday through Friday.
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From Aging Research &Training News and .Older
Americans Report...
Eldercare News You Can Use

Alcohol-Related Disorders. Alcohol-related
hospitalizations among the elderly cost Medicare more
than $230 million in 1989,according to a study by Wendy
Adams of the Medical College of Wisconsin. Researchers
found alcohol-related hospitalizations in 1989 accounted
for 1.1 percent of all hospitalizations in that age group.
Alzheimer's Disease. The Alzheimer's Association,
headquartered in Chicago, has in place a Safe Return
program to locate missing Alzheimer's disease patients
who have wandered away. For a fee, people with
Alzheimer's and other memory disorders can be
registered in a national database. By calling atoll-free
number, law enforcement agencies nationwide are
notified of the missing person. Contact the association
at(S00) 272-3900.
Bone Lossand Estrogen.Taking estrogen supplements
can prevent bone loss in older women, but it must be
taken for at least seven years and benefits lessen beyond
age 75, concludes research by David Felson of Boston
University.
Corporate Eldercare Programs.,A total of 1,310 new
spaces for the elderly were created over the last year in
eldercare programs sponsored byAmerican businesses.
The effort is spearheaded by the American Business
Collaboration for Quality Dependent Care and managed
by Work/Family Directions of Boston. Contact: Barry

Wanger,(61~ 965-6469.
Depression and Heart Attacks. People who survive
heart attacks but suffer from major depression have a
three- to four-times greater risk of dying within six
months than those who do not suffer depression. The
research was conducted by Nancy Frasure-Smith of the
Montreal Heart Institute and colleagues.
Dietary Fat and Prostate Cancer. The higher the
intake of dietaryfat,especiallyfrom red meat,the greater
the risk that prostate cancer will progress from a latent
disease into alife-threatening disease, according to
analysis of data by a team led by Dr.Edward Giovannucci,
Channing Laboratory and Harvard School of Public
Health, Boston.
Driving Skills in Aging.The American Association of
Retired Persons has some tips on whether an older
driver is likely to be involved in driving accidents. The
bulletin includes a written self-test for older drivers to
assess their skills. A copy of Older Driver Skill Assessment
and Resource Guide is available as Stock #D14957 from
AARP Fulfillment, 601 E St., NW,Washington, DC 20049.
Eldercare Publication. A new bibliography listing
eldercare publications has been prepared by the
Washington Business Group on Health(WBGI-n and the
U.S.Administration on Aging.Eldercare is the Workplace:
An Annotated Br6liography includes 93entries of interest
to human resource and personnel managers responsible
for work/family issues. It is available for $25from WBGH,
777 N. Capitol St., N.E.,Suite 800, Washington,DC 20002,
(202)408-9320.
Employer Eldercare Assistance. The federal
government is "unlikely to assume responsibility for
providing long-term care coverage in the near future"
and, therefore, private employers increasingly are
realizing they "must do something for themselves,"
concludes a recent white paper bySegal Co.consultants.
• To meet employees' elder care needs, many
companies have established the following programs:
• Information and referral
•employee assistance programs
• counseling and support groups
• flexible work scheduling
• management training
• dependent care assistance plans
• direct services
For more information on the report, Long-Term Care:
Should It Be Part of Your Benefits Plan?, contact Mary
Feldman,Segal Co., One Park Ave., New York, NY 100165895,(212) 251-5056.
Grandparenting. AGrandparent Information Center
has been set up by the American Association of Retired
Persons at its Washington,D.C. headquarters to provide
support to the growing number of grandparents who are
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serving as primary caregivers to their grandchildren.
Contact the center at(202)434-2296.
Hardening of the Arteries. Regular exercise may
greatly reduce stiffening of the arteries, a primary cause
of high blood pressure that can lead to heart disease and
strokes in older people,according to research sponsored
by the National Institute on Aging.
Home Care.A book offering information and guidance
on choosing a home care provider, managing home care
workers and solving problems is available from the
United Seniors Health Cooperative(USHC). Home Care
for Older People:A Consumer's Guide may be purchased
for$12from USHC,1331 H St., N.W.,Suite 500,Washington,
DC 20005-4706,(202)393-62?2.
Home Health Care. Of the 6 million Americans
receiving home health care from paid professionals,
more than half were 65 years or older, according to the
latest findings of the U.S. Agency for Health Care Policy
and Research. Other findings are:
• More women than men received at least one home
health visit in 1987, the latest year for which data are
available.
• Widowed persons and those with difficulty
performing three or more of the following activities were
more likely to receive home health care:eating,toileting,
dressing, bathing and transferring in and out of bed.
Information about Aging.Consumer Library on Aging,
published by Geriatric Research and Training Center
(GRTC), contains over 1,400 items on topics related to
older adults and their common medical problems,
provides information on how to establish a consumer
library and includes actual handout materials. Available
for $660.00, plus UPS delivery,from GRTC,3501 Masons
Mill Rd.,Suite 501-B, Huntingdon Valley,PA 19006,(215)
657-9993.
Normal Aging. A National Institute on Aging
publication indicates healthier aging,less disability and
possibly extended life spans will be the end result of
pending research on the aging process. NIA predicts
normal aging will be defined more closely and key
biomarkers of aging will be identified. In Search of the
Secrets of Aging is available at no charge by calling the
NIA Information Center,(800)222-2225.
Nursing Homes.The nation's nursing home population
is continuing to increase, the U.S. Census Bureau says,
Census data shows:
•Of the 1.8 nursing home residents in 1990,1.6 million
were 65 or older.
•The likelihood of living in a nursing home increases
with age, with almost half of those 95 and older living in
nursing facilities.
• The nursing home population is predominantly
female (1.3 million). Two-thirds of the women (68.6
percent) were 80 years or older.
• Most nursing home residents were widowed (61.1
percent). About one in seven were married.
Pneumonia Shots. A national health education
campaign is being planned to inform health professionals
and the public aboutthe importance of the pneumococcal
pneumonia vaccine. The National Institute on Aging's
Public Information Office has developed a physicians'
education kit on pneumococcal pneumonia.
Rural Aging. Myths of rural aging are explored by the
20
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National Center for Health Statistics. It found:
• the elderly comprise about 15 percent of rural
population and 12 percent of the urban population;
• only 18 percent of rural elderly are in high-income
families, compared with 27 percent of urban elderly;
• monthly Social Security benefits averaged $601ess
for elderly in rural areas;
• one-half of rural elderly are poor;
• the social networks of rural and urban elderly are
roughly comparable; and
• rural elderly are not healthier or more active than
urban elderly.
Common Beliefs About the Rural Elderly: What Do
National Data Tell Us? is available as DHHS Pub. No.
(PHS) 93-1412 for purchase from U.S. Government
Printing Office, Mail Stop SSOP, Washington, DC 20402-

9328,(202) 783-3238.
Smoking and Aging. Older Americans who smoke
have an increased chance for hip fractures and dental
problems.Scientists atthe University of Californiafound
both men and women who smoked had significantly
lower hip. bone density than non-smokers. The greater
number of cigarettes that women smoked, the greater
the bone loss.
Stroke Recovery. Friends and relatives can have a
recuperative effect on the physical functioning of poststrokeelderly patients, according to a recent study by a
group of researchers led by .~ngela Colantonio of the
University of Pittsburgh. A social network has a positive
effect on reducing the risk of institutionalization, they
said.
UrinaryIncontinence.Biofeedbackandpelvic muscle
exercises can be used to treat and even cure urinary
incontinence,accordingtoastudyfunded bytheNational
Institute on Aging.The study shows the two approaches
reduced urine losses by as much as 50 percent to 99
percent in some individuals.
Women and Aging. A new publication contains
information to help women plan for retirement as early
as possible. Women in MidLife: Planning for Tomorrow,
edited by Christopher Hayes is available for $14.95 from
Harrington Park Press, 10 Alice St., Binghamton, NY
13904-1580;(800)342-9678.
This information was taken with permission from recent
issues of Aging Research &Training News and OlderAmericans
Report, which are copyrighted newsletters for professionals
available for sale by Business Publishers, Inc., 951 Pershing
Dr., Silver Spring, MD 20901-4464,(301)587-6300. See ad, page
43.

The National Institute on Human Resources and Aging has
prepared anumber oflow-costInformation Packets related
to the recruitment, retention, training and supervision of
staff in aging and human services. Filmographies—
.:ollections of film reviews—on a variety of aging topics
are also available. For more information, call or write The
National Institute on Human Resources and Aging, c/o
Brookdale Center on Aging,425 East 25th St. New York,NY
10010; S00/64STAFF.
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Dear EAPA Members:

The Association's audited fi nancial statements are presented i n the accompanying
pages with our independent auditor's opinion. Our-goals this past fiscal year were to
maintain existing member services, initiate new sources of revenue and balance the budget.
As'reflected in the comparative statements of revenues and expenditures, and changes in fund
balance, our core revenues in member dues,. annual meetings and certification fees all showed
improvement~even as we reduced total operating expenses by $432,063from 1992 levels. Nevertheless,
we experience an operating deficit again this year, albeit 80 percent less than that in 1992.
This will, in fact, make the current year asdifficult as the past one insofar as we have stretched our
cash and asset base. Overall, our cash assets decreased slightly but total current assets declined and
liabilities increased commensurate with the operating loss.
To a large extent; the operating loss reflected weaknesses in ancillary program revenues such as
advertising, publications and contributions. Many of the new initiatives in 1992-93-have taken longer to
implement than'anticipated. New publications such as the Appendix and Glossary to Standards 2, and
new programs in education and training are just now coming on line. Thus, we have reason for optimism
that this year's efforts will result in a balanced budget and an increase in our net worth.

;~:G ~ c),;':-%
q ~.': -'

Sincerely,
Michael- L. Benjamin
Chief Operating Officer
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Zack &Riggs, P.C.
November 17, 1993
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ASSETS

Fixed Assets
Office equipment less accumulated
depreciation of $106,236 and
$83,474 (notes B2 and D1)
Other Assets
Deposits

1993

1992

621,494

624,166

$

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
(notes BS and G)
Accounts receivable (note B1)
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

38,262
31,196
690,952

66,676
47,189
738,031

58,749

81,511

9,343

9,343

759 044

B2$ 885

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities (notes C and D2)
Current portion of capital lease
obligations (note D1)
Unearned revenue (notes 83 and E)
Total current liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Capital lease obligation (note D1)
Accrued liabilities (note D2)
Total liabilities

394,218

$

LIABILITIES AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

350,523

5,741
582,883

5,741
5$1,565

982,842

937,829

2,013

7,073
15,221

-

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets
of Employee Assistance Professionals Association,
Inc.,(a Wisconsin Corporation) as of June 30, 1993
and 1992, and the related statements of revenue,
expenses and changes in fund balance(accumulated
deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Organization's management. Our responsibility
isto express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examin ing,on a test basis,evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An auditalso includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management,as wel I as evaluati ng
the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe thatour audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
For the year ended June 30, 1992, minimal
accounting controls were exercised over cash
collections priortothe initial entryofsuch receipts in
the accounting records. Accordingly, it was
impractical to extend our audit of such receipts
beyond those amounts recorded.
In our opinion,the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Employee Assistance
Professionals Association, Inc., as of June 30, 1993
and 1992, and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

June 30,

$

Board of Directors
Employee Assistance
Professionals Association, Inc.
Arlington, Virginia

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROFESSIONALS ASSOCIATION
BALANCE SHEETS

$

Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants

984,855

960,123

225 811

131 238

759 044

828 885

Commitments and Contingencies
(notes D and G)
Accumulated Deficit (note H)

The accompanying notes are an integral partofthese financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE(ACCUMULATED DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,
REVENUE
Membership dues
Contributions
Certification Fees

1993
$815,453
43,326
283,973

1992
$780,694
92,696
157,388

Annual &Legislative conferences
Regional conferences
Research and Educational services
Advertising income
Mailing lists
Contracts &Projects
Investment income
Other income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
General Management
Annual and legislative conferences
Membership services
Certification and accreditation
Research and educational services
Public Policy
Regional conferences
Committee projects
Regional representation
Contracts and sponsored programs
Total Expenses
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES

811,437
53,1 IIl
64,938
47,763
40,919
6,863
16,363
12,734

763,320
165,636
95,553
75,468
43,017
40,807
34,446
19,494

2,196,950

2,268,513

727,330
487,540
451,399
216,418
173,922
132,£300
70,521
16,074
15,519
-

949,634
429,958
508,092
274,466
122,169
184,404
128,270
44,584
54,373
27,636

2,291,523

2,723,586

(94,573)

(455,073)

FUND BALANCE(ACCUMULATED DEFICIT)
Balance, beginning of period as
previously reported
(131,238)
Prior-period adjustment (note H)

--

receivable
Decrease in prepaid expenses and
deposits
Increase in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in unearned
revenue

24,041

(1,184)

15,993

24,668

28,474

123,944

1,318

22 137

96,961

198,371

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

2,388

(256,702)

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Purchase of equipment

--

Total adjustments

Cash flows used in financing activities:
Principal payments on capital lease
obligation
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, Beginning of
period
Cash and cash equivalents, End of period

5 060
(2,672)

6 571
(287,859)

624,166
621 494

912,025
624 166

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
1993
Interest received during the year
16 536

1992
35 983

Interest paid during the year
395,315

24 586

1 269

~5288

The accompan ying notes are an integral part ofthese financialstatements.

71 480

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance, beginning of period
as restated

(131 238

323,835

(Accumulated Deficit), end of
period

225 811

131 238

The accompanying notes are an integral partofthese financial statements.

NOTE A ORGANIZATION
The Employee Assistance Professionals Association, Inc. (EAPA) was
organized in 1972 in Wisconsin as a private non-profit organization. The
Association is an international organization of professionals who assist in
the identification and resolution of productivity problems associated with
employees and their families impaired by personal problems such as drug
and alcohol addiction, stress, emotional and other personal concerns
which may adversely affect employee job performance. Prior to June 30,
1989. EAPA was known as The Association of Labor Management
Administrators and Consultants on Alcoholism, Incorporated (ALMACA).

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

NOTE B SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES
1993

Cash flows used in operating activities:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses
$ (94,573)
Adjustments to reconcile deficiency of
revenue over expenses to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
22,762
Bad debt expense
4,373
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in accounts

1992
$ (455,073)

26,055
47,025

1. Accounts Receivable
Accounts which are over 60 days past due are written off. Subsequent
collections of these accounts are included in income as received.
Management deems all other receivables to be collected and thus, there
is no allowance for doubtful accounts.
2. Fixed Assets
Office equipment is carried at cost and is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives.
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3. Revenue
EAPA records membership and advertising revenues as unearned when
received and recognizes the revenue over the applicable membership or
advertising period.
Funds received for the annual conference are recorded as unearned when
received and recognized as revenue once the conference has been
completed.
4. Income Tax Status
EAPA is exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and no provision has been made for Federal and
State income taxes.
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association considers its
money market account to be cash equivalents.
6. Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the June 30, 1992 financial
statements to conform to the June 30, 1993 presentation.

NOTE C ACCRUED LIABILITIES
EAPA collects membership dues for state and local chapters and remits
these to the chapters on a monthly basis. As of June 30,1993, and 1992,
a total of $14,800 and $15,000, respectively, is due to state and local
chapters and is included in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities
on the balance sheets.
EAPA also administers funds for the Pacific and Western regions and for
three district conferences funded by these regions and state and local
chapters. Revenues and expenses are recorded by EAPA,with any surplus
being recorded as I iabi I ity. Deficits are funded entirely by EAPA.As ofJune
30, 1993 and 1992 the total regional and district conference liability is
approximately $58,000 and $65,000, respectively. These amounts are
included in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the balance
sheets.
NOTE D LEASES

1. Capital Lease
The Association is the lessee of equipment under a capital lease in 1993
and 1992. The assets and liabilities under the capital lease are recorded
at $18,277, which represents the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The assets are depreciated overthe lease term. Depreciation of
assets under the capital lease is included in depreciation expense for the
years ended June 30, 1993 and 1992. Accumulated depreciation on the
equipment is $9,139 and $5,483, respectively, as of June 30, 1993 and
1992.
Minimum future lease payments under capital lease as of June 30, 1993
for each of the next two years and in aggregate are:
Year Ending June 30,
1994
1995

Amount
$ 7.,010
1,265

Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

8,275
521

Present value of net minimum lease payments

7 754

Current portion of obligation
Long-term portion of obligation

5,741
2,013
7 754

The interest rate on the capitalized lease is approximately 12.4% and is
imputed based on the lessor's implicit rate of return.
2.Operating Lease
The Association is obligated under a lease agreement to rent office space
for a term of five years beginning on February 1989, and ending January
24
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31,1994. The lessor abated al I annual base rentals for the first 14 months
of the term. Total rent payments are amortized over the term of the lease
agreement to compute the rent expense. As of June 10, 1993 and 1992,
approximately $20,000 and $44,000, respectively, represents accrued
rent of which approximately $20,000 and $29,000, is current and long—
term, respectively. Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 1993 and
1992 was approximately $85,000 and $96,000, respectively. A schedule
of unadjusted base rentals follows:
Year Ending June 30,
1994

Amount:
67 000

~~
Total minimum future rental payments

67 000

The lease has an annual rent adjustment clause based on operating costs.
NOTE E UNEARNED REVENUE
EAPA records membership and advertising revenues as unearned when
received and recognizes the revenue over the applicable membership or
advertising period. As of June 30,1993 and 1992, unearned dues revenue
is approximately $434,000 and $397,000, respectively. All advertising
revenue has been recognized as earned.
EAPA set aside 30 percent ofthe maintenance fees received from members
during the year ended June 30,1992 for certification to defray the cost of
future testing, During the year ended June 30,1943, recertification began
and a portion of deferred fees were recorded as revenue. In addition, the
Association determined the eligible members for recertification and
deferred a portion of their maintenance fees paid to defray the costs of
future testing. As ofJune 30,1993 and 1992,approximately $106,000 and
$154,000, respectively had been deferred.
NOTE F RETIREMENT PLAN
TheAssociation sponsors a defined contribution pension plan covering its
el igible employees which is being funded through the purchase of annuity
life insurance contracts. The Association is contributing monthly an
amount equal to a fixed percentage of the employees' monthly
compensation. The employees become eligible under the plan upon
attaining twelve months of continuous service with EAPA. Pension
expense for the year ended June 30, 1993 and 1992 amounted to
approximately $38,000 and $27,000, respectively.
Under the plan an employee becomes 20 percent vested after more than
two years of service, increasing 20 percent each year to 100 percent
vesting after more than six years of service or attainment of age 65.
NOTE G UNINSURED CASH BALANCES
The Association maintains its money market account in one financial
institution located in New York. The balance is insured by the' Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $100;000. At June 30, 1993 and
1992 uninsured amount held at this financial institution totalled
approximately $486,000 and $472,000, respectively.
NOTE H PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Fund balance at July 1, 1991 has been adjusted to correct an error made
in 1989 in the recording of a rent abatement.
NOTE I SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On August 24, 1993, the Association entered into an agreement to rent
office space. The lease term is for 10 years and provides for base annual
rent of approximately $121,000, plus the Association's share of property
taxes, and maintenance costs. The lease also requires annual rental
increases.

The Western District Conference
A Context for Decision Making
by Maureen Kerrigan, Esq.
EAPA Director of Government
Relations

Thetreatmentof

gays and lesbians
under Colorado law has raised
considerable attention among
the media and among EAPA members
who have expressed concern about
holding the EAPA Western District
Conference this year in Colorado. A
trial court ruled December 14 that the
law was unconstitutional and those
advocating for the boycott of
convention and tourist activity in the
state ended the boycott. This article
providesabackgroundto the Colorado
initiative, written within thecontextof
other initiatives around the nation.
The controversial Amendment 2 in
Colorado banned anti-discrimination
laws for gays and lesbians. However,
immediately after the amendment
passed,nineindividualsandthecitiesof
Denver (the site of the EAPA Western
DistrictConference),BoulderandAspen
— which have ordinances protecting
gaysand lesbiansagainstdiscrimination
—filed suit against the state.
In January, a Denver district judge
issued a preliminary i njunction against
the amendment,citing a fundamental
right"notto have the state endorse and
give effect to private biases." The
Colorado Attorney General appealed
the injunction and the State Supreme
Court upheld it, ruling that the
amendment, "to a reasonable
probability,infringeson afundamental
right protected bythe Equal Protection
Clause of the U.S. Constitution."
The amendment has been
enjoined
permanently
from
implementation, although the state is
expected to appeal.
Efforts to pass legislation similar to
Colorado's Amendment 2 have been
active in Oklahoma, Florida, Idaho,
Kansas, Michigan, Missouri and
Arizona.
Efforts to extend protection based
on sexual orientation in both human
rights ordinances and statutes dealing

with issues such as employment and
housing rights have been repeatedly
defeated in many localities, including
Tampa, Florida; Juneau, Alaska;
Illinois; New Mexico; New York;
Rhode Island; Maryland; Portsmouth,
New Hampshire; Arkansas; and West
Virginia. The November elections are
certain to have had an impact in many
states.
In Lewiston, Maine, an ordinance
prohibiting discrimination based on
sexual orientation in housing,
employment, credit and public
accommodations was approved bythe
city council in January and suspended
in February by a petition calling for its
repeal.

Cobb County, in Georgia, passed a
resolution this year condemning
homosexualityoutright.The resolution
carries no legal weight, but the county
commissioners may use it to make
community-supported appeals to
legislators to deny public money for
government job and health insurance
benefits to unmarried domestic
partners.
In Alaska, a gay rights ordinance
was approved and, almost
immediately, reversed and repealed.
The ordinance would have banned
discrimination based on sexual
orientation for city employers and
employees hired through city
contractors.
(~

MANAGEMENT TRAINING FOR
I EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

THE
DRYDEN
FILE II
MCMIXXXVIII Motivision, Ltd.

~~Satilla
Par1e
H 0 S P I 1 R l
The notfor-profit specialists in
emoliona! &addictive 1!/nesses

•Addictive Disease
• Psychiatric

UPDATED WITH NEW FACES, NEW
SETTINGS AND A NEW ENDING.

• Geriatric

24 Minutes
Available on 16mm Color Film
and Video Tape (all formats).
PreviAws $25 U.S.
Detluctlble Upon Purchase
Purchase Price $495 U.S.
Plus Shipping

Motivision. Ltd.
2 Beechwood Road
Hartsdale. N.Y. 10530
Call(914)684.0110

ALSO ASK FOR A COURTESY PREVIEW OF :.
"EAP-AT YOUR SERVICE!" TO ENCOURAGE
SELF-REFERRALS. LENGTH: 8 MINUTES.

2500 Satilla Parkway
Waycross, Georgia 31501
Crisis Line 1-800-362-COPE
(2673)
Business Phone 1-800-382-9873
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PUBLIC
POLICY

Keeping Up...with Health Care Reform
by Maureen Kerrigan, Esq.
EAPA Director of Government
Relations

Attendees

at the Public Policy
Forum in Anaheim were the
first professional group to
receive information on the final
language for the mental health and
substance abuse benefit in President
Clinton's health care reform plan. Dr.
Eric Goplerud, director of policy for
the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration and a
member of the White House health
task force, delivered the information,
which had only been released by the
White House that day.
The benefit has been reduced from
earlier reports, including the October
Exchange coverage. The message is
clear from Capitol Hill: the mental
health and substance abuse benefit
remains one that will be debated
intensely, as organizations such as the
powerful National Association of
Manufacturers have already
denounced its inclusion as too
expensive.
Initially,the benefitwould be limited
primarily in two ways: (1) restrictions
on the amount of treatment an
individual would beeligibleto receive;
and(2)restrictionsagainstallowing,an
individual to apply specific costsharing requirementstoa plan'soverall
annual cost-sharing limits.
The intent expressed in the
legislation is that, by the year 2001,
the benefit would be unlimited with
appropriate management. There has
been much discussion on Capitol Hill
regarding the issue of appropriate
management and much discussion
among providers regarding the details
of the benefit. Earlier this year, EAPA
member Ron Finch testified before the
Senate Labor and Human Resources
Committee regarding the issue of
management of the benefit and
explained Bell South's program.
As part of EAPA's interest in taking
a lead on the details of managing the
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care,the EAPA Standards and Benefits
committees are reviewing utilization
review guidelinesfor EAPA comment.
Inpatient or residential care wou Id
be limited to 30 days per calendar
year for both mental health and
substance abuse treatment. An
additional 30 days could be allowed
only ifa health professional designated
by the health plan in which the
individual isenrolleddeterminesthat:
(1)the individual poses a threat to his
own life or that of another; or (2) the
medical condition of the individual
requires inpatient hospitalization in
order to initiate, alter, or adjust
pharmacological or somatic therapy.
If the individual is enrolled in a
high cost sharing plan, he or she must
first meet aone—day deductible.
Hospitalization for substance
abuse is limited to medical
detoxification associated with
withdrawal from alcohol or drugs that
involves psychiatric complications.
Residential treatment would be
available for the following: treatment
centers, detoxification, crisis, mental
illness treatment, therapeutic family
orgrouptreatment hnmes,community
treatment or recovery centers for
substance abuse.
Intensive non-residential treatments would be provided by health
plans if a health professional
designated by the plan determines an
individual should receive such
services. It would include partial
hospitalization, day treatment,
psych iatric rehabi I itation,home-based
services, ambulatory detoxification
and behavioral aide services.
However, these services are only
available undercertain circumstances:
• to avert the need for, or as an
alternative to, treatment in hospitals
or residential inpatient settings;
• to facilitate the earlier discharge
of an individual receiving inpatient or
residential care;
• to restore the functioning of an
individual receiving inpatient or
residential care;

• to restore the functioning of an
individual with a diagnosable mental
or substance abuse disorder;
•to assistthe individual todevelop
the skill and gain access to the support
services the individual needstoachieve
the maximum level of functioning
within the community.
An individual may receive an
additional 60 days of non-residential
treatment provided a health care
professional designated by the health
plan determines additional treatment
is medical ly necessary or appropriate.
This second 60 days is subject to 50
percent coinsurance inthe highercost
sharingplansand $25 pervisitpayment
for the lower cost sharing plans. This
costsharing required bythe individual
cannot count toward the individual's
annual out-of-pocket limits on cost
sharing. Thereisaone-day deductible
for an individual enrolled in a high
cost sharing plan.
Intensive non-residential services
may be substituted for inpatient days
at the rate of two intensive -nonresidential days for one inpatient day,
uptothe 30-day limit. Ifan individual
uses this substitution, he or she may
receive up to 60 days of intensive nonresidential treatment. A one-day
deductiblewould applyforindividuals
enrolled in high cost sharing plans.
Other outpatientservicesavaitable,
based on a person's need, would
include: screening and assessment,
diagnosis, medical management,crisis
services and somatic treatment
services. Again,cost sharing for these
services could not count toward an
individual's annual out-of-pocket
im its.
Outpatient psychotherapy and
collateral services are limited to 30
psychotherapy or collateral services
annually. These services carry a 50
percent coinsurance payment for
individuals in the high cost sharing
schedule and $25 per visit for those in
a low cost plan. Again, these cost
sharing expenses would not count
toward annual nut-of-pocket limits.

Additional visits in this category
may be granted at the discretion of the
health plan to prevent hospitalization
or to facilitate earlier hospital release
by exchanging inpatient days at a rate
ofone i npatient day for fou r outpatient
psychotherapyvisits. Costsharingdaes
notcou nttoward an nualout-of-pocket
limits.
Outpatient substance abuse
counseling' and relapse prevention:
Although it is not mandated, a plan
may offerthese services byexchanging
inpatient/residential daysforoutpatient
visits on a one to four basis until the
30-day limit is reached. In addition,
within 12 months after an individual
receives residential or intensive nonresidentialtreatment,30grouptherapy
sessions are covered for substance
abuse counseling and relapse
prevention. Intensive non-residential
andoutpatientdetoxification mayonly
be provided in the context of a
treatment program. Cost sharing does
notcounttoward annual out-of-pocket
limits.
Case management: Although this
must be offered by health plans, plans
have the discretion to determine if a
specific individual should receive the
services. The services to be provided
include those that assist individuals in
gaining access to needed medical,
social, educational or other services.
The EAPA Board of Directors
adopted the following position
statement at the meeting in Anaheim:

EAPs and Health Care Legislation
Statement

The costs of health care soar when
illnesses are not prevented or when
early intervention does not enable
earlier treatment. Thus, as the nation
formulates strategies for establishing a
health security system, the role of
programs that provide prevention and
early intervention must be included.
The workplace is ideally suited for
accomplishing prevention and early
intervention systems.
EAPs are proven systems designed
to assist work organizations and their
employees. These programs —which
may be sponsored by labor or
management, or jointly sponsored —
have demonstrated the ability to cut
costs and preserve human resources at
the workplace by developing and
maintaining procedures and actions
for the identification and resolution of
productivity problems associated with
employees with behavioral/health
problems.
Everyworkorganization shnuldoffer
EAP services to its employees.
Rati~nalP

• Behavioral/health problemsarethose
associated with alcoholism, drug
abuse, marital, financial, legal,
emotional andfamilyproblems. These
problems adversely affect work
organizations by interfering with an
employee's ability to function on the
job efficiently, effectively and safely.
•Behavioral/health problems are often
readily visible to family, friends, work
associates or supervisors. However,
the consequences of such problems
result in a slow drain on productivity
and the development of concomitant
i I I nesses.
•25-40 percentofgeneralhospital
patients are in the hospital
because of complications
associated with alcoholism.
(Source: Dr.Steven Schroeder,
Robert Woods Johnson
;~
Foundation; Conversation on
Health Forum 3/26/93).
AccordingtotheWashington
Business Group on Health,
health problems that have an
impact on the workplace
include:
• Stress
41
• Depression
16%
• Drug Abuse
28%
• Mental Health
46%
•
Alcohol Abuse
47%

• Stress-related problems cost
American industry $150 billion per
year.
• 25 percent of American workers
have stress-related health problems.
•A system of pol icies, procedures and
practices is needed at the workplace
in order to provide prevention and
early identification of employees with
behavioral/health problems.
• The integration of an employee
assistance program (EAP) into the
workplace is a crucial component of
any system developed for the
prevention and early identification of
these problems.
•EAPs are ideally situated within work
organizations to evaluate the
effectiveness of health care delivery.
The EAP staff monitors the investment
of the health care system by training
the employees' productivity into the
work settings.
• EAPs are unique programs and their
development and operation require a
unique body of knowledge.
• Ideally, EAPs are integrated with
other organizational systems and
services (e.g., benefits, managed care,
workers' compensation) to efficiently
and effectively assist in the
identification and resolution of
productivity problems associated with
behavioral/health problems.
Specific Recommendations and
Strategies
• EAPA recognizes the role of EAPs in
helping to save costs and to preserve
human resources at the workplace.
• EAPA's goal is to have EAP services
available to every work organization
and the CEAP recognized as the
credential that demonstrates EAP
practitioner competence.
• Any health care reform proposal
should provide incentives for the
establishment and maintenance of
employee assistance programs.
Recommended Incentives Include:
• Tax discounts (health care related
taxes) for employers that offer EAP
services;
• Discounts on insurance costs (e.g.,
workers'compensation)foremployers
with EAPs, where appropriate.
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The NationalMentalHealth Association's(NMHA)mission
is straightforward: increase public awareness that clinical
depression is a treatable disease. De-stigmatize the illness.
The agency's nine-month campaign, culminating with the
release of a study on the economic costs of depression,
reinforced this message rnany times, in many ways.
`

he National Association of Manufacturers believes
mental health care should be stripped from the
Presidents health care reform. Maybe theythink
its fine to operate without the brain, but I don't."
Thatcomment was made by Mary EIizabeth "Tipper" Gore,
mental health advisortothe PresidenYsTask Forceon National
Health Reform,ata December2 newsconferenceand seminar
onthefindingsofastudyentitled The EconomicsofDepression.
A review of the data revealed that which EAPs already know:
it pays employers to cover employees' mental health. The
November 1993 edition of the Journal of Clinical Psychiatry
contains the full report.
"Absenteeism and loss of productivity in the workplace
account for 55 percent of $43.7 billion in costs due to
depression," Gore continued. Once other costs are factored
in (e.g., co-morbidity —the interaction of depression with
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substance abuse
or smoking;
quality of life
measurement;
~ .r ,,
and
costs
~,
~°~
incurred
by
individuals suf'~°~~~~a
feringonlysome
i~`~`~'~~w~~ ~~
ofthesymptoms
~;
~'r~ _~ .:~
of depression
and not now
included in the
~~
analysis), that
amount could
be much higher.
"Out of 12
million Americans who suffer
EAPA member Daniel J. Conti, Ph.D., Vice from depression,
President/Director,EmployeeAssistanceProgram, 72 percent are
The First National Bank of Chicago, said his
part of the labor
company —the tenth largest bank in the U.S. —
force.”
Further,
has studied costs associated with mental health
added,
and determined that bottom-line costs have been she
decreasing, despite higher costs in mental health d e p r e s s i o n
benefits coverage.
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adu Its who are between 25
- 44 years of age. Gore said
that EAPs name depression
asoneofthetopfive Illnesses
reported by employers.
Paul E. Greenberg, Vice
PresidentofAnalysisGroup,
Inc. and co-author of the
Study,
Sald,
"Poor
concentration,
I I1CIeClslVelless lack Of Self'
confidence Can Seriously

Panelists in a seminar following the news
conference included EAPA President Sandra
Turner, Harold S. Kahler, Jr., Ph.D., president
of the Wellness Councils of America
(WELCOA)(left) and Jerry M. Wiener, M.D.,
George Washington University Medical
School. "The workplace is a microcosm of
What's.going on in society," said Kahler.
~~ ..workers are not well informed [about
depression]and decision makers are not well
informed, either." Turner said "Employee
assistance programs de-stigmatize the
experience of depression,anxiety,alcoholism
and/or drug abuse,and offer help early, while
job, family and some measure of self-esteem
are still intact.~~

impairworkerproductivity.
It has been estimated that
depression runs an
employer $3,000 per
depressed worker — that's
$180 for every worker in
the United States, whether
or not he or she is ill."
Workplace solutions were offered by businesses large and
small. EAPA member Daniel J. Conti, Ph.D., Vice President/
Director, Employee Assistance Program, The First National
Bank of Chicago, said his company —the tenth largest bank
in the U.S. —has studied costs associated with mental liealth
and found them going down, despite higher costs in mental
health benefits coverage, due to a comprehensive program
which is in place. First National's drive is toward "early
intervention," said Conti, describing the bank's approach as
integrated. The bank has also expanded its EAP.
"With companies of 70 employees, said Carol Trawick,
CEO of her own company, "the loss of one employee has
greater impact." she said. For ten years, Trawick's company
has carried mental health coverage. "We do this to maintain
competitiveness with the corporate giants," she said, pointing
to her company's 99 percent worker retention rate.
Frederick K. Goodwin, M.D., Director of the National
Institute of Mental Health (NIMH),said it is "twice as costly
to leave [depression] untreatedthan it istotreat it." Goodwin
added that, as workplaces become more technically
demanding,therewill bean upswing in casesofdepression.
Asked for advice to employees on how to recognize
depression, Conti offered that First National has developed a
training program. Goodwin said that identification can be
difficult among extremely high performing employees, as
even a 50 percent decrease in productivity can go unnoticed;
such was the case of the late Vincent Foster, White House
counsel, a victom of suicide.
Afour-hourseminarfollowingthe newsconference included
a panel discussion moderated by Colleen Reilly, Director of

treatment available to them. Depression never needs to be
Community Education for
fata I."
NMHA, with EAPA's
Factoid-filled USA Todayquotes NIMH as sayingthat 70
President Sandra Turner;
percent of all depression goes untreated; with treatment,80
President-Elect of the
American
Psychiatric
percentcanbehelped. Manychoosetokeeptheirdepression
Association Dr.Jerry Weiner;
under wraps; it becomes instantly visible, however, when it
and Wellness Councils of
turns to suicide. Ofthose attempting suicide,80 percent are
America
(WELCOA)
clinically depressed.
President Harold Kahler.
US News &World Report related in its August 9 edition
Turner provided the EAP
that more than 30,000 people commit suicide in the U.S.
perspective of workplace
each year, with rates peaking in the spring and on Mondays.
depression programs.
In that article, psychologist David Clark, director of the
"For the past 50 years,
Center for Suicide Research and Prevention at RushEAPs have assisted workers
Presbyterian-St. Luke's Medical Center in Chicago, reflects
and workplaces with the
the male preponderanceforhidingdepression,saying: "For
economic and personal
half the patients I see, no one knows they're depressed.
consequences of [personal
They are surgeons operating on patients, psychologists
~ ~~:, problems leading to
seeing clients, journalists conducting interviews. They
reduced productivity],"said
smile and kisstheirwives goodbye in the morning. Butsome
Turner. "Employee assistance programs de-stigmatize the
ofthem areasking,'Should I dietodayortomorrow?"' Once
experience of depression, anxiety, alcoholism and/or drug
the question is answered, thought often moves quickly to
abuse, and offer help early...while job, family and some
action, the pursuit of death becoming relentless. Elizabeth
measure of self-esteem are still intact.
Neus, for Gannett News Services, says at least 660,000
Americans attempt suicide each year and fail.
"Individual employees, their companies and unions all
NMHA is a voluntary charitable organization founded in
benefit. Employees get the cost-effective treatment they
need, unions retain members' jobs, and employers get
1909 by Clifford W. Beers, a former patient in public and
restored productivity from valued workers. This is the
private mental institutians. It offers patient and family
supportservices,public information,educational materials,
premise of an EAP."
After providing the background of the EAP, Turner went
and community outreach programs. WELCOA is a national
on to say,"...in recent years, with more self referrals to the
non-profit organization dedicated to promoting healthier
EAP, the pattern of presenting problems has shifted [from
lifestyles for all Americans, especially through health
solely alcoholism and substance abuse]. We see much
promotion activities at the worksite. WELCOA is the
umbrella organization linkingcommunity-based coalitions
more anxiety, panic and depression disorders in the
workplace." She noted theimportanceofaccuratediagnosis,
into a supportive network which now includes some 27
as the treatment of each of a number of mental health
locally affiliated Wellness Councils. More than 2,100
conditions varies with regard to the prescribed course of
companies are members of Wellness Councils and their
medication, behavioral treatment and psychotherapy.
combined workforces total over 1.7 million Americans.
"Employee assistance practitioners who are often M.D.s
or Ph.D. psychologists, social workers and counselors have
the benefit of clinical expertise, knowledge
of workplace conditions and job demands,
and access to a network of company and
community resources to offer employees,"
said Turner.
Listing the realities of the 1990s
workplace,Turnerrecounted herexperience
inacompanyfacedwithdownsizing. "They
contracted with an EAP after several
employees threatened suicide, there were
rising incidents of chest pain, dizziness and
fainting, and one employee drove to the
gate with a shotgun, threatening to kill his
supervisor." She stated how the company's
desire to avoid incident was achieved
through "atremendousteameffort byunion,
management,
EAP,
employees,
outplacement consultants and the medical
department."
Calling depression a "killer of dreams,
hope, vision...the future," Turner said that, "Poor concentration, indecisiveness, lack of self-confidence can seriously impair worker
unlike other killer diseases such as AIDS, productivity;'said Paul E. Greenberg,Vice President of Analysis Group,Inc.and co-author of
depression is treatable. "We al I must do an the study. "It has been estimated that depression runs an employer $3,000 per depressed
even better job of bringing employees to the worker — thaYs $180 for every worker in the United States, whether or not he or she is ill:'
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Evaluation of the Sn~a11 Business Pro°ect:
l
Innovations, Challenges ~ Future Direct~o~.s
CADA's results can become your strategies
he composition of our nation's businesses is in a
period ofrapidchange. Considerthecontrastbetween
the number of small businesses in 1990 and in 1991.
Underthe Small BusinessAdministration(SBA)size standards,
a small busir~ess, depending on its industry division,can have
upto 100employees(wholesaletrade)orupto 1,500employees
(some classifications of manufacturing, transportation and
public utilities). According to the SBA, a small business can
have annual receipts of up to $3.5 million (retail trade) or up
to $17 million (general and heavy construction).
Among 6.1 million business tax returns filed in 1991,SBA
reported 15,000 qualified as large businesses, i.e., those
employing 500 or more workers. In 1992, an estimated 20.5
miI I ion businesstax returnsshowed fewerthan7,000businesses
qualifying as large firms. With this trend continuing,the new
frontier for the EAP is the small business operator.
Coexistingwiththesestatisticsisthe1991 Nationallnstitute
on Drug Abuse (NIDA) Household Survey which indicates
that69 percent of i I I icit drug users are employed and,ofthose
who use drugs, 75 percent use them on the job. The negative
impact of a substance abuse problem on a small business is
i kelyto be disproportionately h igh;forexample,the destruction
of a company's sole printing press or delivery truck could be
catastrophic.
While the need for EAPs appears evident,estimates are that
the average EAP penetration in any market is 25 - 30 percent.
Increasing this penetration would seem to benefit both the
field and America's entrepreneurs.
A three-year effort by the Corporation Against Drug Abuse
(CADA),funded by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation and
first reported in the January'92 edition of the Exchange, was
designed tofacilitatethe integration of EAPs intosmalI business.
The Washington, D.C., area served as the project's point of
focus. A consortium known as the Washington Employer
Resource Consortium(WERC)provided consultation,training
and education services to 375 companies and developed a
baseline of the number of EAPs currently engaged by small
businesses in thetargetarea,aswell as small business attitudes
about EAPs.
WERC delivered 14 supervisory training sessions to 223
supervisors and made 45 presentations throughout the
Washington metropolitan areaand nationwide,sharing insights
and experiences with other professionals. Contracted EAP
providers performed the clinical case management —
assessment, referral and follow-up, offering today's broad
brush of services. At the conclusion of this three-year period,
the results were evaluated in a formal report.
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Market Survey
Of 365 survey respondents, 233 were for-profit industries
which included professional services (26 percent); financial
services(seven percent) and "other" services(seven percent).
A large number of nonprofit organizations exists in the
Washington area, as well as small federal agencies.
Less than 20 percent of the respondents had EAP-like
services. 'Asked if they perceived substance abuse as a
problem,66 percent believed it was a national problem, but
not a problem in their business. Offered the option of
consortium-based health insurancewith orwithouta subsetof
substance abuse services, the majority of survey respondents
indicated that they would consider group-purchasing of EAPs
and other benefits through a consortium model.
WERC marketed the EAP as a management tool to help
them better manage their human resources. The slogan was
"helping them to improve their people,their productivity and,
ultimately, their profitability." WERC's marketing and
promotion approach emphasized the concept of group
purchasing as the way to both reduce the costofand add value
to the EAP.

Strategies
Increased visibility for the EAP was achieved through
periodic mass mailings; seminars and public presentations to
employer associations, trade groups and conferences; media
activities including a newsletter, news articles and interviews;
regulatory alerts disseminated to members and prospective
members; and special events, in collaboration with other
organizations.
The seminars were billed as WERCshops and focused on
intervention with troubled employees, as evidenced by job
performance, without specific mention ofsubstance abuse,in
order to inform business owners, who believed they had no
substance abuse problems, of the many ways EAPs can assist
managers. Because supervisoryattitudesaboutEAPsinfluence
referral behavior,emphasiswasplacedon policyconsultation,
supervisory training and employee education as a means of
improving utilization of the EAP. About one-third of the
businesses involved already had some form of a drug free
workplace policy. This mix created an atmosphere in which
employers could learn from one another.
Small businesses require flexible packaging of services to
accommodate their diverse needs. Services must be
geographically accessible and easy to use. The CADA project

developed a network with four contracted external EAP
providers with offices throughout the region. Drug testi ng was
added to the services as a product to attract employers, many
of whom were government contractors subject to required
testing. Unfortunately, it did not generate the necessary
revenues, in the time available, to make the consortium selfsufficient.
Pricing. WERCreflectedthemanagedcareconceptthrough
its creation of a "preferred provider network"(PPN) of EAPs
selected to serve members geographically. While eager to
participate in the WERC experiment,contracted EAP providers
were unwilling to cease their own marketing as it was risky to
rely entirely on the project for new business..Also, intense
competition within a slow market had EAP profit margins in
the D.C.-area commonly less than five percent and often less
than three percent, leaving little room forflexibility in pricing
services. The PPN approach did minimize the marketing
activities for the providers and create a sense of cooperation
among EAP providers, even as competitors, which benefitted
both the employers and the consortium.
The consortium developed discountapproaches—package
discountand volume pricing. The beliefwasthat, although it
costs more to manage a program of 1,000 employees in ten
different companies than in one company, the larger pool
would offset higher management costs. The experiment
proved unsuccessful. The volume of sales needed to support
the full cost of this EAP was not achieved,thus,the anticipated
economies of scale offered through a consortium's volume
purchasing approach did not materialize.

Outcome Data — Seminar
Although less than half (48 percent) of the respondents
indicated that the seminar had changed the way they think
about workplace substance abuse, 96 percent indicated that
they had learned new information andthatthetraininghelped
them identify and manage troubled employees.. Ninety-six
percent also indicated that they would talk to family, friends
and co-workers about what they had learned, would
recommend additional training in their organizations and >;
would attend additional training.
Outcome Data —Drug and Alcohol Testing
Atotalof571 drugandalcoholtestswereperformedduring
the period September 1992 to June 1993. Although all tests
involved drugs, companies did not test for alcohol on every
occasion; for example,some only performed alcohol testing
for post-accident cases or for pre-employment. Of the 571
tests, 39 tests screened positive, with only 32 (5.6 percent)
confirmed positive. Forty-four different drug assays were
revealed within the 32confirmed positive screenings,indicating
multiple drug use. The prevalence of drug use was: Cocaine,
14; Cannabinoids, 13; Alcohol, 8; Opiates, 6; PCP, 3;
Amphetamines, 0.
Implications
Theproject'sgoal,financial setf-sufficiency,wasnotattained,
and it was determined that the consortium approach does not
necessarily providetheeconomiesofscale and theopportu n ities
forcost-competitivepricingforsmallemployerEAPs. Demand
(or lack ofl by small businesses in a particular market was a

significant factor associated with the success ofthe approach.
CADA was able to gain some insight into how to reach small
employersand providerelevant,accessible,affordableservices'
to them, challenging traditional assumptions about EAPs for
small businesses.
Affordability. Contrary to prevailing thought,datashowed
that access to educational programs and flexible EAP-type
serviceswill beassignificantafactorasthecostformanysmall
businesses.
Market Environment. All of those interested in promoting
drug-free workplaces and EAPs must appreciate the unique
aspects of the markets within which they operate.
Organizational Roles and Structure. Decision makers in
small businesses work in complex organizations and tend to
wear many hats. To reach the person who has the authority to
make a decision to purchase EAP services, one must invest
considerable time in understanding the web of roles and
relationships of those involved.
Decision Making. Those making the decision to purchase
EAPs were those who were generally effective managers,
recognizing that investment in their human resources was as
important as effective marketing strategies and efficient
operations.
EAP as Prevention. EAPs can get involved in primary
prevention by more effectively influencing employer
knowledge,attitudes and behaviors about substance abuse in
the workplace and its effects on people, productivity and
profitability through educational efforts directed specifically
towards the small business community.
Knowledge. The general public is still largely unaware of
the symptoms of substance abuse or its effects on individuals
in the workplace; the projects market survey results showed
this is also true of small employers. Intensive information and
public education continue to be necessary to increase
knowledge and awareness of these problems.
Behavioral Intentions. Some social research has indicated
thatbehavioral intentionsareoften betterpredictorsofbehavior
than knowledge or attitudes. Changing attitudes regarding
workplace substance abuse is essential in influencing the
behavioral intentions of the decision makers, managers and
supervisors of small businesses. Along-term investment in
educational efforts must be directed toward the vast majority
of small business employers who still do not appreciate the
EAP's value.
EAPsinthe'90sandBeyond. EAPs,especiallyindependent,
unaffiIfated programs,wiII wishtoconsidertheoptionsavaitable
to them,. including the opportunity to integrate themselves
morecloselywithmanagedcaredeliverysystems. Asnetworks
grow,the EAP may consider becoming an integral part of the
managed behavioral health care system, providing expertise
through itscoretechnology,aswell as itsgatekeepingfunction,
to improve substance abuse treatment. This strategy could be
the key to EAP survival and success in the future.
The complete Evaluation of the Small Business Project:
Innovations, Challenges &Future Directions(Susan A Berger,
Project Director; Elena Brown Carr; and Jeffrey Mintzer) is
available through CADA at a cost of approximately $15.
Contact Elena Brown Carr by telephone at 202-338-0654 or
by fax at 202-338-0689.
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ELDERCARE
VIDEO REVIEWS

Senior Centers: Lend Your Support
ReviewerComments:Video provides information on senior
community centers and the different services they provide
to older individuals and the community at large. Video also
illustrates the role of volunteers in senior centers. This is
presented as a positive option for senior centers as a way of
increasing services. Volunteers discuss the positive impact
volunteering has on their lives. Video is appropriate for
anyone examining options for the elderly.
Content Rating: 90
Comprehensive ...........................................................83
Direct..........................................................................90
Timely.......................................................................100
Accurate......................................................................83
Informative..................................................................87
Credible......................................................................97
Presentation ................................................................90
Year of First Release: 1992
Length: 12 minutes
Format: VHS
Cost: $15 to purchase.
Order: The National Council on the Aging, Inc.,
409 Third St., S.W., Suite 200
Washington, D.C., 20024.
Telephone 202-479-1200.

Sharing the Caring: Adult Day Care
Review Comments: Video highlights families who have
accessed adult day care programsfor various reasons. Good
promotion of adult day care by examining different center
activities: arts and crafts,exercise, meals,etc. Video i t l ustrates
that the elderly are active in day care centers and that the
centers are not just babysitting facilities.
Content Rating: 90
Comprehensive ...........................................................83

Family and Medical Leave Act from pg. 17
caring for persons other than immediate family members.
These research results were presented at EAPA in Anaheim
by Carol Hoffman,DirectoroftheCAREProgramatBerkeley
and may be useful in providing research support for this
particular point.
• Unpaid leave in itself raises serious concern. Persons
requiring a leave may be unable to afford the time off and
will continue to use a patchwork system of sick time,
vacation time, personal leave days and other methods. In
addition, the time needed for caregiving may show up in
increased absenteeism, tardiness, stress, increased use of
the telephone and reduced productivity.
• There is a need for more flexibility in the legislation —
more support for flexible work arrangements of all types,
including flexible scheduling, part-time work, compressed
work weeks, telecommuting and job sharing.
Thenewco-chairs oftheChildand Family Subcommittee
are Carol Bennett-Speight and David Reedy. They will
continue working with Maureen Kerrigan on this and other
policy issues throughout 1994.
Carol Speight is Director of the Faculty/Staff Assistance
Program at The University ofPennsylvania.Leslie Trimble is
Coordinator of that program's Family Resource Center.

FMLA-Defined Terms
Eligible Employee: One who has been employed for
at least 12 months by a given employer, and who
has provided at least 1,2150 hours of service during
the 12 months before the leave is requested.
Family Member: Can be a spouse; a child under 18
years of age, or 18 years of age and older and
incapable of self-care due to a mental or physical
disability; or a parent.

Direct..........................................................................87

Timely.......................................................................100
Accurate......................................................................83

Informative..................................................................93
Credible......................................................................93
Presentation ................................................................93
Year of First Release: 1992
Length: 18 minutes
Format: VHS
Cost: $35 to purchase
Order: The National Council on the Aging, Inc.,
409 Third St., S.W., Suite 200,
Washington, D.C., 20024. Telephone 202-479-1200. ~
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Child: Can be biological; adopted; foster child;
stepchild; legal ward.
Parent: Can be biological or an individual who has
taken the place of a parent for the employee.
Serious Health Condition: An illness, injury,
impairment, or physical or mental condition that
involves:
(a) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential
care facility; or
(b) continuing treatment by a health care provider.
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leading cause of death is suicide. "Overdose" is fifth on the
ist.
In the 1980s, the addict was generally someone with an
income above $25,000, a college degree, and 25 years or
more of age. With treatment, recovery was usually helped
by a strong support group offamily and friends. "Today, we
see less education, less support, a younger age and a more
urban climate, surrounding a crack addict with
environmental relapse variables," said Nuckols. Further,
when a person becomes addicted to crack earlier than age
13,a critical part of maturation and social ization is arrested,
further exasperating recovery attempts. Citing an average
recovery rate of 50 percent, he said that a New York City
African-American counselor found her average recovery
rate among inner city youth, and adults addicted during
their youth, to be only six percent.
Explaining the role of abstinence syndrome in crack
addiction, Nuckols said that a "crash" occurs in the first 12
hours. This is the period when a call for help from the addict
must be answered immediately. If more than six hours pass
between the time an appointment is scheduled and the
appointment itself, iYs possible the addict will have taken
more crack or consumed some other substance and wiI I not
show up for the appointment. By the next day, the "show
rate" is down to 30 to 40 percent. The next critical period
of craving does not occur until about Day 4, said Nuckols,
when the addict may crave other substances and large
amounts of sugary products.
A key difference between crack and alcohol addiction is
the number of opportunities for intervention. An alcoholic
"builds up to a drink," said Nuckols,"going through phases
of isolation, loneliness,denial,depression andthendrinking.
You can intervene anywhere in those phases; in crack
cocaine, we do not see depression as a cause. Further, if an
alcoholic misses an AA meeting, you can still get to them;
a crack addict is prone to impulsive relapse. Highly
cognitive models are not effective and success is better
ensured through a simpler program of proactively working
to change habits."
When working with the crack addict, one deals with the
"dynamicofgrandiosity," in whichtheaddictfeels heorshe
has nothing in common with anyone else and will also tell
the EAP how to do his or her job. "Grandiosity is nothing
morethan overcompensation foremptiness and loneliness,"
said Nuckols.
Advice offered to EAPs included:
• Do not allow the client to draw you into an emotional
and confrontational argument, through which the crack
addict
fly into a "narcissistic rage. The only area you
can address is job performance."
• Appeal tothe narcissism,countering"Don'ttell me I'm
addicted" with phrases such as "You may well be right, let
me call an expert because yours is a very special case."
• Interface with all resources and find someone with
whom to bond the addict, i.e., find for the cllent a surrogate
recovery family.
• Arrange meetings during high-risk periods,such as pay
days or a Friday night.
• Setup "red zones," such as certain paths to work and
home which will avoid the drug peddler.
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Strategies for Creating Added Value
The theme of the 22nd annual conference was brought
home bythe welI-attended workshop"Strategiesfor Creating
Added Value Tomorrow: Developing the Role ofthe EAP as
Human Resource Consultant."
The "core technology" proposed by Roman &Blum in
1985 crystallized for practitioners the competitive edge of
an EAP. As the environmental niche changes, however,the
EAP needs to adapt in order to survive. Some EAPs, unlike
managed care, have the potential to provide expert
consultation to workplaces on a number of human resource
management issues. EAPs may have intimate knowledge of
the cultures of organizations they serve; many mainstream
human resource management issues are intertwined with
issues that are within the realm of EAP practice, such as
managing reactions to layoffs, managing diversity, coping
with the human resource management implications of the
changing demographics of the workforce, and reshaping
organizations and the consequent organizational structure.
Four presenters described what is often relegated to the
backburnerof EAP practice— organizational consultation.
Among the speakers' remarks were these:
• Nathan Bennett, a researcher at Louisiana State
University, addressed the need for EAPs to focus on
organizational changes, such as technological advances
and downsizing. The field is at a crossroads, he said, with
organizations restructuringtheir human resourceoperations,
and EAPs having their roles redefined.
• Merk Miller, of Burke-Taylor Associates, noted that
whereas a decade ago EAP services were sold on a take-itor-leave-itbasis,the newtrend istoward "customer-defined"
services. HestressedthatEAPsneedtoestablishrelationships
in the workplace, produce outcome data,and offer new and
flexible services.
• Brent Turek, manager of psychological services for
Dow Chemical, stated that EAPs need to rethink their
service delivery in terms of how businesses are changing.
Major companies in the future, he said, may typically have
40 - 50 decision makers and use exclusively temporary or
part-time employees.
Ethnic and Cultural Diversity
The overriding message of cultural diversity presenters
was that the EAP must understand the clients culture and
should seek to refer the client to practitioners who are of the
same background("not just someone with a housekeeper
who translates for the practitioner").
Dr. Nanette de Fuentes, a Glendale, CA, licensed
psychologist, said that for Latinos, lack of trust,
communications gaps, differences in expectations, Latino
attitudes toward mental health, and lack of EAP sensitivity
toward religious and cultural traditions are barriers to EAP
utilization. Latinos seek advice and direction, de Fuentes
said, not just empathy. Active treatment should address the
immediate problem and the EAP should be aware of the
possibility of problems arisingfrom obligations in the clients
country of origin. Latino respect for authority may hamper
voicing of disagreement.
The EAP can .create a bond by asking to see photos of

fami ly members. Other suggestions offered to make the EAP
user-friendly:
• Evaluate your own attitude, experience and racism;
• Formulate a multicultural EAP Advisory Committee;
• Know Latino workforce demographics;
• Develop a bilingual and bicultural EAP marketing plan;
• Make the office more friendly and accessible —train
the support staff to do this;
• Involve families and/or other significant persons;
• Develop a varied bilingual and bicultural resource list
of therapists and treatment facilities;
• Educate managed care companies, HMOs and PPOs.
Dr. Hershel Swinger,a licensed clinical psychologistand
full professorat California State/LA, began his discussion on
the African-American client with, "I have 30 minutes to
clear up 400 years. If I do this right, we should all feel very
uncomfortablewhenlamfinished." Stronglyseasonedwith
humor, Swinger did manage to create some discomfort by
explaining that, while there seems to be training for whites
on how to deal with blacks, there's no training for blacks on
how to deal with whites. He defended the "hostile black
person" who identifies a problem in his or her work
environment as saying that is how gains have been made
within a hostile environment. "It's the hostile black person
who is referred to me," he added,"no one refers docile black
people to me, just as they don't refer whites or Latinos."
Swinger's key is "theabilitytoform atrustingrelationship
—and you don't get to decide this, the client decides this."
Seventy percent of verbal communication is actually
nonverbal, he said, citing that while 66.6 percent of the
Anglo popu lation experience a negative effect being around
blacks, 87.9 percent of blacks experience a negative effect
being around whites.
"Yourjob and responsibi lity are to make sure policy is set
in place that provides referral sources utilizing treatment
methodologies wh ich are effective for the African-American
client," said Swinger, who subscribes to the Bantu theory
that people are basically good, there is harmony in the
universe, and the highest form of human existence is love
and cooperation — as opposed to Freudian theories which
he said define people as selfish, irrational, self-gratifying
"and basically bad." In his work, Swinger finds the seven
tenets of Kwanzaa to be very successful as treatment
methodologies for African-American men. "Its a system
that fits," he said.
Dr. FlorentiusChan, a licensed clinical psychologist and
Assistant CI i n ica I Professor at the UCLA School of Med ici ne,
mentioned an opposite behavior pattern forthe Asian client,
of"keeping a problem to himself or herself" until it becomes
fully intolerable, with possible consequences including
workers' compensation claims. Because Asians seek "to
please the boss," they are reluctant to bring up points of
disagreement. For this and other reasons, Chan said,
traditional Western psychotherapy may notapplytoAsians.
Dr. Chan's recommendations included:
• Establish credibility and rapport;
• Clarify the role of the therapist, the procedure, the
therapeutic process,expectations,and theconceptualization
of mental illness;
•Respectcultural beliefs values, behaviors,familystructure
and community influence;
• Anticipate and reduce resistance to treatment;
• Give an interpretation of the presenting problems;

• Offer some immediate relief and culturally appropriate
advice;
• Identify significant others and community members who
can become involved in helpingtheclienYstherapyexperience;
• Facilitate the therapeutic process through helping the
client to express suppressed emotion and feeling.
In LACounty,thereareten majorAsian Pacificcommunities
whose members speak 70 different languages. Cultural
differences between Eastern and Western cultures include:
Eft
West
West
E~,~t
Living with
Living with
Logic of
Logic of
the future
the mind
the past
the heart
Financial
Financial
Encourage
Suppress
independ.
individuality
dependence
individuality
Fatalism
Master of fate
Interdependence Independence
Change
Conformity,
Assertion of self Conserve
Rigid roles/
Flexilbe roles/
harmony
status
Surpress emotion Express emotion status
ADA, Mental Health and the Psychiatric Patient
Who Keeps Coming Back
Linda Sturdivant and Carolyn Maue of Presbyterian
University Hospital attributed the prevalence of psychiatric
patients in the EAP office to fewer long-term benefits avai table
through managed care and I ike programs. Referrals tend to be
more complicated for these clients due to the same benefit
coverage issues. Implications for the EAP include:
• Need to allocate time to the chronic mental patient;
• Maintain data management to determine realistic time
spent with these patients in order to educate employers;
• Strengthen clinical knowledge or train other staff in this
manner, as follow-up services may not have to be performed
by a "therapist';
• Know the roles to be assumed by managed care and by
the EAP;
• Clinical training to facilitate appropriate planning —
knowingwhat is working with local providers;
• Help educate supervisors and providers on ADA;serve as
a bridge between provider and workplace via
recommendations.
R. Paul Maiden, CEAP at the University of Illinois and
Beverly Younger, a Riverside, IL EAP consultant, spoke of the
impact on the workplace of the Americans with Disabilities
Act. There are 43 million Americans with disabilities — 11
percent of the population. Companies are viewing the ADA
act in terms of:
• How far do they have to go to comply;
• What should be their level of social commitment;
• What are the chances of being caught and what are the
penalties;
• Await-and-see attitude, to see what happens in the
courts;

• Potential public relations problems if a local employer
does not handle a situation effectively;
• Determining who will be the advocate for the wrongly
treated person —the EAP?;
•Claims must be fi led through EEOC,an alreadyoverworked
area.
Problems with compliance to ADA include costs, physical
modifications, overhauling policies and processes, and legal
costs. Further, the employer questions whether mentally ill
patients make good workers, a stigma issue that does not exist
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with physical disabilities. And often, small companies rarely
have designated staff to handle ADA compliance.
The role of the EAP is to:
• Serve as a calming. force to counter the fear and
misunderstanding about mentally ill patients;
• Maintain an ongoing case management process, as
patients have ups and 'downs;
• Educate supervisors and co-workers.

Violence in the Workplace
One of the best-attended workshops at the conference
(with participants standing and sitting on the floor) was
"Violence in the Workplace." Walter Reichman, Professor
& Chairperson at Baruch College in NY, recounted that
since 1980, 750 employees have been murdered at work
each year, with murder cited as .the leading cause of
occupational death. In addition,the U.S.governmentfound
that during one two-year period, 12,000 women were
victims of rape by a co-worker. When violence takes place,
workers begin to lose confidence in the organization. Once
this trust is lost, it is very difficult to recover. Therefore, the
issue of violence must be approached proactively.
Reichman feltthatto properly address violence,everyone
must be using the same definitions. For example,stress can
be defined as the point when environmental demands
exceed personal resources;frustration can be defined as the
point when an individual is blocked from achieving a goal
and perceives the impediment as arbitrary, leading to
aggressive behaviordirected againstthe source ofthe block
or a scapegoat. Violence can be defined within three levels:
• Least injurious: plays nasty pranks; occasionally
argues; swears at others; shows excessive belligerence;
• Moderately violent: refuses to comply with roles,
i ntentionally damages orwastes property; practices sabotage;
vandalizes; frequently argues; steals for revenge;
• Highly injurious: attacks customers; assaults other
employees or supervisors; anger-related accidents; assaults
or rapes; performs arson; murders; uses unauthorized
weapons.
'
Categories of violence can include:
• Instrumental: serves a cause (e.g., the World Trade
Center incident); usually safety and security are beefed up
as a result;
• Interpersonal among peers: an area in which the EAP
can come into play, through conflict resolution, mediation
and/or arbitration;
• Interpersonal against managers;
• Resulting from stress and frustration;
• Personality dysfunction;
• Psychotic reaction.
Performance problems should be handled positively, by:
• Focusing on the problem;
• Asking the employee for ideas on how to solve the
problem, reinforcing positive suggestions;
• Adding the EAP's own suggestions;
• Reaching an agreement on the steps both EAP and
client will take;
• Express confidence that the employee will solve the
problem;
• Set specific follow-up dates;
• Praise the employee when desired behavior is first
observed.
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Dr. Kevin Flynn, an EAP Consultant in LA, noted that,for
years, he had no experience with violence, yet,"Last week,
had three assessments." Flynn recommended that EAPs
reach out to their colleagues for help and support and said
that teamwork is necessary. He also offered ways to assess
the workplace for the potential for violence, saying the
physical setting is often changed.following an incident of
violence;itshouldbechangedpriortoan incidentoccurring.
• Do not have dangerous work objects (e.g., a paper
spike);
•Ifthere is on ly one door, put a piece of wood in the door
so it can be closed, but not locked;
• Look at what is in the nature of the environment and
what has changed to create a different and threatening
setting;
• Determine how the individual is processing actions
around him or her;
• Set aside one-half hour of quiet.time to relax;
• Maintain good documentation, making notes during
interviews of client reactions.
And Much, Much More
As is readily apparent, the workshops offered at the
annual conference were substantive. Dozens of workshops
addressed compellingandtimely issues,offering invaluable
expertise and advice. Conference participants were given
a 200-page book ofthe abstracts and data provided by many
ofthe presenters wh ich wiI I serve as a resource to those who
attended. This book can be ordered on page 11. However,
nothingcouldtaketheplaceofbeingthere. Plan tobethere.
In Boston. In 1994.

President's Message continued from pg. 5
familydiagnosisandreferral servicestothe95,000employees
covering aten-state territory. As Membership Chairman, Bill
worked on developing marketing efforts for EAPA, redefining
membershipcategoriesand increasingoverall membershipto
7,000.

Chuck Taylor, CEAP, Chairperson of the Consultants
Committee, is Vice President of Burke-Taylor Associates, Inc.
in Research Triangle Pk., North Carolina. Prior to joining
Burke-TaylorAssociates in 1982,Chuckwasthe EAP consultant
for an affiliate ofthe National Council on Alcoholism forthree
years. He is past president of the North Carolina EAPA
Chapter.
Carl R. Tisone, CEAP, Chairperson of the Development
Committee,isco-founderand President,Personal Performance
Consultants(PPC), a subsidiary of Medco Behavioral Care in
St. Louis, Missouri. He is also co-founder and Chairman of
Personal PerformanceConsultants U.K.Limited and co-founder
and President of PPC International, Inc. In his capacity as an
EAPA Board member, Carl has also served on the Strategic
Planning and Finance Committees. Since PPC's entry into
managed care with PsychPlan~ in the 1980s, he has become
a leading proponentof integrated EAP/managed mental health
care programs.
~

ON THE
LABOR FI~ON~
AFL-CIO Has History of Helping Employees Tackle Substance Abuse,
Says Fogarty During EAPA 22nd Annual Conference

As

a union officer, Bill Fogarty
could feel right at home at the
Disneyland Hotel, represented
by H.E.R.E. Local 681 and Operating
Engineers Local 501. Fogarty served
as speaker during the labor luncheon
at the EAPA 22nd Annual Conference,
on behalf of )ack Henning, Executive
Secretary-Treasurer of the Orange
County (CA) Central Labor Council,
AFL-CIO.
"We care about what happens to
our members both on and off the
clock," said Fogarty. "That is why we
support EAPs and other programs
dealing with substance abuse.... We
would not be fulfilling our roles as
union leaders [if we did not] stress the
wellbeing of the person, first and
foremost, over his or her productivity.
Increased productivity, reduced
turnover and curtailing absenteeism
are only by-products — socially and
economically useful by-products, to
be sure — but by-products,
nonetheless.
"We represent brothers and sisters
in the beer,wine and distillery industry
and do not propose that they lose their
jobs due to an illness or disease that at
times seems out of control. We do not
want our abusing members fired. We
want recovery for them. We want the
abusing employee on the assembly
Iine, in the office, or wherever he or
she works,to be treated with the same
sensitivity and generosity asthe aJ~usi ng
managerorCEO intheexecutivesuite.
Cover-up and dismissal must make
way for treatment and recovery."
Fogarty discussed how the AFLCIO was involved in the substance
abuse issue long before many of the
national organizations came into
existence, and has contributed to a
more enlightened view of abuse as a
disease, helping to convert
management personnel, professionals
and fellow employees to a more
rational and humane approach to
abuse and the abuser.
The California Federation of Labor,

the IargeststateAFL-CIO in thecountry
with more than two million members,
was the first to propose insurance for
alcoholism as a disease and a program
of recognition, referral, rehabilitation,
recovery; reemployment and
readjustment. "Union and management cooperation resulting in joint
action is the key to effective prevention
and treatment of substance abuse in
the workplace," said Fogarty, calling
for continued development of
programs that are fair, firm, a.nd equal
forlaborandmanagementabusers. "It
is also mandatory and imperative that
[theprograms] includeeducation...and
confidentiality."
In 1974, the AFL-CIO developed a
combined
laborsuggested
managementagreementon policy and
procedure designed to enable
alcoholics in the workforce to receive
the assistance they needed. A Joint
Union-Management Approach to
Alcoholism RecoveryPrograms,served
as a guideline developed bythe LaborManagement Committee of the
National Council on Alcoholism. At
its 11th convention in 1976, the
California Federation of Labor adopted
aresolution thatall laborunionsshould
develop joint programs that deal with
alcoholism. In 1982, it again took
action to recommend jointcommittees,
also recommending expansion of the
committee role to include drug abuse
as an additional issue.
As for drug testing, State Federation
policy passed in July 1992 at its 19th
Convention states "Employers are
currently pushing random or blanket
drug–testing which violates the
worker's basic right.to privacy. The
Federation supports programs which
focus on prevention and rehabilitation
rather than punishment. If drug tests
are required at work, they should be
based on evidence of impairment and
any worker tested must be provided
with adequate opportunities of
checking the accuracy of the test
results."

In seeking a good working model
for an EAP, Fogarty asked Doug
Magu i re ofthe LA Federation of Labor`s
Labor Assistance Program, and found
that "It is a confidential counseling
and professional referral service for
employees who have one or more
personal problems which have been
proven to significantly interfere with
their job performance, or which have
prompted the employee to voluntarily
seek help." The program goals should
include educating supervisors/union
in identifying problems at an early
stage when successful treatment has
its best chance. Further, the program
should:
• have confidential access to
reputable professional counseling,
outside the workplace and away from
the employee's social environment,
and receive guidance and referral to
hospitalization or other resources;
•recognize the family unit as an
integrated entity in the employee's
environment; therefore, the family
should be eligible to receive services;
•the costs associated with treatment
should be paid in line with the
employee's health care benefit plan.
Fogarty urged all present to get
involved in the political process of
determining the outcome of the
national health plan. "If we fail to get
involved [to assure the availability of
substance abuse treatment for al I], the
hospitals and insurance providers will
create the plan for us," said Fogarty,
who called for unity not only of labor
and management,butalsogovernment
and the community.
He closed by statingthatjoint labormanagement programs have the best
recovery rates and are better able to
serve member needs. "AFL-CIO
President Lane Kirkland has endorsed
this position," said Fogarty, "and has
instructed the AFL-CIO community
service liaisons to help establish these
~
programs wherever possible."
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REGIONS
AND CHAPTERS

L.A. Chapter Takes Next Step with ON DCP
Director Lee Brown Finds EAPA
is Everywhere
In September, EAPA .President
Sandra Turner met with Dr. Lee Brown
in his office in Washington, D.C. A
little more than a month later, a public
forum in the Los Angeles area attended
by Dr. Lee Brown, Director of the
Officeof National DrugControl Policy,
was also attended by EAPA, in the
person of Carmen Abbott, President of
the Los Angeles Chapter.
Abbott's address to the forum and
Dr. Brown brought out the problems
and then brought home the message
that EAPs are "the solution." "Studies
have shown that a large percentage of
employee assistance professionals'
caseloads deal with substance abuse
problems," said Abbott, adding, "The
cost of drug abuse and alcoholism to
U.S. business and industry is in the
billions of dollars in reduced
productivity alone."
"Treatment works," Abbott
continued. "It works for
American businesses in
saving
terms
of
productive employees'
lives, saving their
families, increasing their
productivity,
and
loweringtheir health care
costs. We all know that
unless an individual is
treated appropriately for
his/her
chemical
dependency, these costs
will show up in other
health care areas."
Abbott recommended
to Dr. Brown that
be
businesses
encouraged to employ
CEAPs, "because these
individualsarethecrucial

link between the
workplace
and
community resources.
Employee assistance
professionals possess
expertise in the areas of
prevention, education,
38
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early intervention and re-integration
of employees into the workplace. Dr.
Brown, this ties in directly with your
policy as stated. in your presentation
today, whereby part of your strategy is
prevention, education and early
intervention. I would now like to offer
the services of the membership of the
national Employee Assistance
Professionals Association to serve as
consultants to your staff regarding
workplace issues."
Abbott concluded by speaking of
the more than 26-year commitment of
Hughes Aircraft Company,where she
serves as Regional Manager of the
EAP, "to treating the chemically
dependent individual and family
members. We at Hughes believe that
treatment works and that it is a winwin situation for all involved:
employees, their families, the
company, the community, and the
country."

L.A. Introduces New
Chapter Officers
The Los Angeles EAPA Chapter
announces the following chapter
officers: President, Carmen Abbott,
Hughes Aircraft Company; Vice
President, Douglas Maguire, PALM;
Secretary,Shelley Komman;Treasurer,
Business
Sonja
Ivers-Suet,
Development Consultants.

CEAP Corrections/Additions
The following Certified Employee
Assistance Professionals were
incorrectly listed in the August October issues:
Montana
Julie Beckel
Minnesota

Gill Balagur-Conn
Vermont
Diane G. Bertoni

~

The men were outnumbered at the Pacific Region's Presidents' Retreat in October. (Front row,left to right) Debbie
Marsala,Outgoing L.A.Chapter President,California Public Policy Coordinator; Barbara Winkler,California Central
Coast President; Celina Pagani-Tousignant, San Francisco President; Carmen Abbott, Los Angeles President; Carol
Schubeck,Organge County President; Marsha White,Columbia River Chapter President(Oregon); Marilyn SponzaSwartz, Santa Clara President; Carole Stevenson, Pacific Region Representative. (Back row, left to right) Chris
Gomberg, San Fernando Valley President; Charla Parker, Crossroads President; Gene Hooyman, Seattle President
(Washington); Larry Hill, Sacramento President. Not pictured are the presidents from San Diego and Fresno.

JANUARY 1994

INFOTRACKS

likely to see alcohol abuse
as a health problem and to
turn to things like alcohol
education as our approach
to dealing with the
problem. But we don't
think of drug abusers as
peoplewith a problem. We
see them as criminals who
need to go to prison."

Three Honorees

EAP Digest
The
recognized three EAPA
members for their
contributions to the EAP
fieldduringthe 10th Annual
North American Congress
on Employee Assistance
Programs. James Conway
(left) received the "Award
of
Excellence"
in
Neurobrain Toxicity
recognition
of
his
Responsible for
uncompromising dediRec~d~vism~
cation to the EAP client.
Richard Bollaert (who
From the October
serves as Treasurer of the
Sacramento Chapter
Commission and on the
Newsletter: An article by
EAPA Finance Committee) EAP Digest award recipients (L to R): James Conway, Richard Bollaert, and Thomas Hill, QADC,
Donald
Phillips.
received the "Award of
NCRPS, submits that the
Professional Ethics," for his high ethical
recidivism
rate
with the chemically
research
grant
athree-year $1.2 million
regard for his clients, union, employer
dependent may be due to neurobrain
Rehabilitation
Research
the
to
create
and profession. Donald Phillips was
toxicity or brain dysfunction from long
and Training Center and study how
inducted into the "EAP Digest Hall of
term
chemical use. Citing Dr. James
drug abuse affects people with
Fame,"for his contributions dating back
Milam
(Under the Influence) and
Ed.D.,
disabilities. Dennis Moore,
one
tohisassistance in planningandtraining
Terence Gorski(StayingSober~,the brain
of
the
nation's
leading
authorities
in
the original 100 Occupational
of the chemically dependent client
substance abuse across disability areas,
Alcoholism Consultants — the
becomes damaged from the use of the
says
the
incidence
of
substance
abuse
"Thunderin' 100" — in 1972.
substance and thetime needed to repair

MCC Adds Child &
Eldercare Services
Child &Elder Care Insights (CECI)
based in Rocky River, Ohio, now
provides referral servicesforMCC's EAP
clientsthroughoutthenation. EAPclients
in need of help in these areas telephone
MCC's Minneapolis-based National
Service Center, which registers their
requests and transitions them to CECI
for resource and referral information.
Each client who uses the services
receivesa personalized report providing
detailed child and eldercare referral
information specific to the individual's
needs,thecommun ity and the situation.

Research Grant Awarded
to Study Substance Abuse Among
People with Disabilities
Wright State University School of
Medicine, Dayton, Ohio, has received

among some people with disabilities
appears to be higher than in the general
population, but no one knows why orto
what extent.

Drug Offenders vs.
Alcohol Abusers
Drunk drivers are responsible for
some 22,000 deaths a year, along with
an estimated $46 billion in injuries and
related costs,accordingto a Washington
Post reprint appearing in the Fall 1993
edition of NCADD (National Council
on Alcohol and Drug Dependence)
Amethyst; overall, alcohol is linked to
94,000 deaths a year and societal costs
running to $85 billion. Drug abuse
claims 21,000 lives a year from a
combination of overdoses, disease and
violence associated with the drug trade.
Related societal costs run to $58 billion
a year.
Marc Mauer, i n areport co-authored

with Cathy Shine, says "we are more

this damage varies from cl ient to client.
Two-thirds of those treated are relapse
prone. With a primary detoxification
period of 15 to 45 days, a secondary
withdrawal periodwill plaguetheclient
from six to 18 months after the primary
period has ended. Symptoms include
difficultywith thinkingclearly,managing
emotions, long and short term memory,
and sleep,aswell asaccidentproneness
and stress sensitivity.

Contracts Awarded
Herbert & Louis, an Oregon
behavioral health care company under
the direction of President Thomas L.
Moore, has been awarded two multiyear contracts to evaluate the
effectiveness of.experimental gambling
addictions treatment programs, and a
contract for the evaluation of alcohol
and drugtreatmentoutcomes in a multifacility three-quarter-way treatment
milieu.
(~
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CONFERENCES
AND WORKSHOPS

EACC-Approved Conferences and
Workshops
Granite State Chapter EAPA,
February 2 in Manchester, NH:"Sexual
Addictions in the Workplace," 2 hrs.;
March 2, "Cult Abuse," 2 hrs.; contact
Anne Schmidt, 603-624-4447.
Mediplex Group, February 4 in NY:
"Therapists Healing Therapists," 2 hrs.;

March 4,"Judaism and the 12 Steps," 2
hrs.; contact Bob Anderson, 516-5829883.
The AlcoholisCIinic ofYoungstown,
February 10in Youngstown,OH:"Ethics
Training for CD Professionals," 6 hrs.;
March 10,"Fetal Alcohol Syndrome &
Fetal Alcohol Effect," 2 hrs.; contact
Doug Wentz, 216-744-1181.
Rutgers UniversityCenterofAlcohol
Studies, February 10 in Piscataway, NJ:
"Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder";
February 17, "Adaptive Counseling";
February 24, "Dealing with Denial";
March 3,"The Art ofPersuasion";March
24,"Biological Foundation ofChemical
Dependency: Use of Medication as an
AdjuncttoTreatment";March 31,"Crisis
Intervention"; all 6 hrs.; contact Gail
Milgram, 908-932-4317.
Northeastern New York Chapter
EAPA, February 18 in Albany, NY:
"Violence in the Workplace," 1 hr.;
contact Mery Seeman, 518-782-0448.

Greensboro Area Health Education
Center, February 24-25 in Chapel Hill,
NC:"Critical IncidentStress Debriefing,"
13.5 hrs.; contact Alan Brown, 919574-8220.
Continuing Medical Education
Programs, Dept. of Psychiatry,
University of Connecticut Medical
School, February25 in Farmington,CT:
"Survivors of Troubled Families: The
Development of the Resilient Self," 5.5
hrs.; March 25,"Clinical Issues in Loss,
Dying,Death &Bereavement,"5.5 hrs.;
contact Dorothy Kagan,203-679-3789.
Youngstown Area Chapter EAPA,
March 11 in Boardman, OH: "Why
Women SeekTherapy,"1.5 hrs.;contact
Elizabeth Williams, 216-332-7266.
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Other Conferences
Second Annual European Conference on Addictive Disease March 2
- 6, 1994, London, England
EuroCAD/94 will be held at the
Gloucester Hotel, Harrington Gardens.
Addiction treatment professionals from
the European Community and the U.S.
will make presentations.
Co-sponsors of EuroCAD/94 i nclude:
The American Society of Addiction
Medicine (ASAM), The International
Council on Alcohol and Addictions
(ICAA), The National Association of
Alcoholismand DrugAbuseCounselors
(NAADAC) and The Consolidated
Association of Nurses in Substance
Abuse (CANSA). This conference is
approved for Category 1, Medical
Education Credits(CMEs).
Contact Tom Claunch, P.O. Box
531346, Birmingham, AL,35253,205871-0050; fax 205-871-0025.
Northeast Student Assistance
Conference February 6 - 8, 1994,
Pittsburgh, PA.
The Drug-Free Schools and student
assistance professionals gather for the
Northeast Student Assistance
Conference(NESAC),sponsored by the
Student Assistance Journal in
conjunction with the National
Association of Leadership for Student
Assistance Programs(NALSAP).
Included inthesessionsare,"Conflict
Is Not a 4-Letter Word" and "Moving
BeyondRisktoResiliency." Workshops
will cover topics to include marketing
your SAP; parenting; group activities;
and neurolinguistics. Call 1-800-4537733 for a program brochure.
Ninth Annual Irish National EAP
Conference September 28 - 29, 1994
Call for Papers
The Ninth Annual Irish National
Conference on Employee Assistance
Programssponsored bythe EAP I nstitute
will take place in the Royal Marine
Hotel, Dun Laoghaire, Co. Dublin.
The conference will focus on EAP
developments in Ireland and other
European countries. "1994 represents a

coming of age of employee assistance
programs in Ireland," says Maurice
Quinlan, Director of the EAP Institute.
"Sincethefirstoccupationalalcoholism
program was developed in 1973 by the
E.S.B. we have come a long way. Most
of the public sector have employee
assistance programs and there is also
rapid growth with private companies,
most of which now wish to develop
EAPs."
The deadline for submission of
abstracts is March 15, 1994; interested
parties should contact: Margaret Bible,
The EAP Institute, 19, The Quay,
Waterford,Ireland;Te1.051-55733,Int.
+353-51-55733; Fax 051-76322, Int.
+353-51-76322.
For inclusion in the Exchange,
conferencesand workshop listings must
reach the editor two months prior to
the cover date. The Exchange lists
conferences beginning with the month
following the cover date.
~

"The Challenge— Maintaining Our
Identity" March 23 - 25, 1994
University.Hilton, Charlotte, NC
The North Carolina Chapter
presents its 15th annual training
conference, with Conference
Moderator Brenda Blair introducing
topics and speakers, to include:
Boundaries...EAP &Managed Care
Jim Francek
Downsizing, Prevention,
Workplace Violence
Jim O'Hair
Cultural Barriers to Recovery
Joanne Stevenson
Post Trauma Response
Lawrence Bergman
EAP Basics
Don Phillips
Legal Issues
David Wright &Robert Bisanar
and much, much more!
For more information,contact)ohn
Howard at(704) 252-5725.

EAPA, INC. ~ THE EMPLOYEE
ASSISTANCE CERTIFICATION COMMISSION
announce

CEAP EXAMINATION DATES
for

1994
Exam Date:
Application Cut-offDate:
Exam Date:
Application Cut-offDate:

May 14, 1994
March 18, 1994
December 3, 1994
October 7, 1994

1995
Exam Date:
Application Cut-offDate:
Exam Date:
Application Cut-offDate:

May 13, 1995
March 17, 1995
December 2, 1995
October 6, 1995

Eligibility Requirements: You must have three years full-time EAP experience, or a minimum of 3,000 hours,
over at least three years, of part-time experience in EAP. The completed Exam Application must be postmarked
no later than the cut-off date.
Requirements Explanation: CEAPexaminationeligibility
requires on-the-job EAP knowledge gained solely through
EA experience—it is not shared by or simply transferred
from related duties, other professions or academic credits.
Your experience in EAP must befrom direct employment,
or internship, or contracted responsibilities for performing
both EAP clinical and organizational consulting activities.
YoumustshowaccountabilityforEAPoperationsatspecific
organization(s).
If your eligibility is in question, you must provide sufficient
documentation substantiating your EAP experience to the

EACC in time for full consideration. Copies of job
descriptions orotherdocumentsdescribingformal EAPjob
duties may be requested.

for information, write
EAPA,Inc.
Attn: EACC
4601 N. Fairfax Drive
Suite 1001
Arlington, VA 22203

After Jan. 24
2101 Wilson Boulevard
Suite 500
Arlington, VA 22201

or call (703)522-6272
The CEAP Examination eligibility reviews are solely the responsibility of the EACC Examinations Com►pittee and the EACC.
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TRAINING
PRESENTING A 2-DAY EAP TRAINING COURSE
The Elements of EAP:A Comprehensive Overview
The Employee Assistance Professionals Association (EAPA) is pleased to present this quality two-day
training, taught by two of the pioneering professionals in the field, Brenda Blair and John Riley. It is
divided into six modules covering the six core areas of EAP practice and will provide participants with
state-of-the-art information on the foundation of employee assistance programming.
This course is especially valuable to:
1 human resource practitioners. 1 nursing and medical professionals
1 benefits managers
1 those associated with the allied health fields
The Need
EAPA has recognized the need and
desire of those professionals working
with EAPs to augment their existing
skills and educational experiences
with state-of-the-art information about
the field of employee assistance
programming.

me Resunsi~

The Goal

Good pace! Excellentgroupdynamics!
Great handouts! Great presenters!
These were among the comments
from participants of the course's first
two offerings in Portland,OR and Trenton, N). Of a possible 5.0, the overall
evaluation score was an excellent 4.65!

To develop, expand and refine EAP
knowledge, skills and abilities,
regardless of educational and work
experiences and encourage active
class participation and discussion,
thereby enhancing the overall learning
experience and the direct application
of presented information to participants' work environments.

Unlike anything presented before, the EAPA-sponsored training courses bear the endorsement of EAPA—the
premier international association of employee assistance professionals, and the approval of EAPA's Education and
Training Committee. EAPA's lamp-of-knowledge emblem is your assurance of a quality educational product
representative of the EAP field.

Training Locations
1 March 18-19, Radisson Hotel, Denver, CO
1 April 18-19, Holiday Inn, Nashville, TN
1 September TBA, Hyatt at LAX, Los Angeles, CA

1 April 5-6, Holiday Inn, Flint, MI
1 April 27-28, Roosevelt Hotel, Manhatten, NY
1 November 16-17, Back Bay Hilton, Boston, MA

To register or receive a training brochure contact:
Employee Assistance Professionals Association, Inc.
2101 Wilson Blvd., Suite 500, Arlington, VA 22201; phone (703) 522-6272; fax (703) 522-4585

& LOCATIONS
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Eldercare continued from pg. 15
Financial Issues & Related
Resources. The employee may be
spending time as well as money on
the older adults care. He or she
needs to become familiar with the
older adultsfinances and talk openly
about the employee's own limited
resources.Understanding Medicaid,
Medicare, inheritance laws and
eligibility criteria can become one
of the major stress factors in
managing an aging parent's care.
Advanced financial planning before

the older adult becomes physically
or mentally incapacitated will
improve the employee's coping
abilities if and when that occurs.
The local Area Agency on Aging
should have Medicare and health
insurance counseling programs, or
call HARP at 202 34-6030. The local
Department of Social Services can
explain the Medicaid guidelines. An
attorney skilled in eldercare law is
also a good resource.
Long Distance Caregiving. Many
EAP professionals may be working
with employees who have parents
in other communities or states.
National networks such as AARP or
the Area Agency on Aging and/or
eldercare consulting firms should
be able to locate data specific to any
location in the country.
Crisis Prevention. Most of us do
not like to think about ourselves or
our parents growing old or becoming
dependent; therefore, many
eldercare issues do not become
concerns until there is a crisis. Early
intervention is possible if employees
receive information about the
available resources long before the
actual need arises. If an employee
and his/her parent have developed
a health care plan, the worker's
stress can be greatly reduced when
a parent's health begins to decline.
This can prevent lost work time or
termination.

General Information
Resources on Eldercare.

persons concerned abouttheir aging
parents and EAP professionals who
need a general overview of eldercare
issues. In common language, it
explores family patterns, aging
myths, normal aging, disease
processes and resources.
Parent Care Advisor is a monthly
newsletter containing a wealth of
information about how to care for
aging parents. Contact American
Health Consultants, Inc., 3525
Piedmont Road, NE, Building Six,
Suite 400, Atlanta, GA 30305, 800688-2421.
Caregivers in the Workplace is
designed to assist companies in
developing caregiving programs for
their employees' needs. AARP
Fulfillment, 601 E Street, N.W.,
Washington,DC 30049,202342287.
C~'

Since 1963,
Business Publishers,Inc. has
provided valuable human services
news to professionals nationwide.
Older Americans Report: weekly
coverage for elderly service providers.
Aging Research and Training News:
semi-monthly coverage of elderly
funding opportunities and research.
Managing Senior Care: monthly
coverage on providing cost-effective
elderly care.
The National Report on Work and
Family: semi-monthly coverage of
solutions to work &family problems.
Fair Employment Report: bi-weekly
coverage ofchanging employment law
requirements.

You and Your Aging Parent: The
Modern Family Guide to Emotional,
Physical, and Financial Problems, by
Barbara Silverstone and Helen K.
Hyman (New York: Pantheon, a
division of Random House, 1989) is
an excellent resource for both lay
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F~rewell...~nd
See you Next November
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At the Employee Assistance Certification Commission(EACC)meeting held November
16,1993 at the EAPA Annual Conference in Anaheim,CA,four
outgoing Commissioners were presented with a plaque
recognizing their three years of dedicated volunteer service to
the Commission. Pictured above are Don Godwin and Winston
George,standing between EAPA Vice President George Cobbs
(left) and EACC Chairperson John Burke. Two other
Commissioners,Carol Boone and George Grant(not pictured)
were also recognized.
a

Meeting for the first of many times to come
during the 22nd Annual Conference,1994 cochairs Tom Amaral, Executive Director, EAP
Information Systems, CA and John Hooks,
UAW—Ford Employee Support Service
Program, National Ford Representative,
Dearborn, MI, begin to talk about the EAPA
23rd Annual Conference,to take place on the
opposite coast in Boston.
-

~

'~

See You in Boston!, quoth 23rd Annual Conference host
chapter members. Front row,from left: Eric Shear, William
Ostiguy, Candace Ryan, Bob Florio, Peter Sullivan.
Second row,from left: Wally Massey, Tom Delaney, Michael
O'Keefe.
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EAPA Inc. and EAP Information Systems are pleased to

announce the release of a comprehensive database of
abstracts for the EAP field

TM
Practitioners, researchers, administrators, educators, and students can now obtain
bibliographies and abstracts on the full scope of EAP issues.

~~~ ,
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Keep Up with the Latest Innovations in the Fie/d!
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'~`

3

Reviewing the current literature is crucial if you are.. .
• Developing programs and policies
•Writing an article or proposal
• Preparing a speech
Developing a course curriculum
Researching a dissertation
•Tracking new practice methods

Save Time and Money!
EAP Abstracts Plus can save you time and money on your literature searches.
Quickly find the information you need on these important topics:

O

• Cost-benefits of EAPs

~a ;`
'. ¢.. '^
~,~ "

•Critical incident stress debriefings
•Downsizing and job loss
•HIV/AIDS
• Managed care
•Cultural diversity
• Violence in the workplace
•Workers' compensation
•And much, much more
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Features of EAP Abstracts P/us...
•Contains over 2,050 EAP-related citations
Provides more than 100 EAP-focused subject search key words
• Can be searched by topic, author, date, type of document, and other variables
• Contains every article published in the core EAP periodicals, as well as
selected citations from more than 250 other journals
• Updated weekly
For a demonstration of EAP Abstracts Plus, visit the EAP Association booth at the 22nd

'``

Annual Conference in Anaheim. For more information or to place an order by phone,
call EAP Information Systems toll-free at:

1.800.755.6965
O 1993 by EAP Association, Inc. and EAP Information Systems. EAP Abstracts Plus is a trademark of EIS.
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